
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Randy Rowse 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Grant House 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss  
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

NOVEMBER 12, 2013 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

11/12/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:30 p.m. - Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public Meeting Room, 
   630 Garden Street 
 12:30 p.m. - Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting  
 4:00 p.m. - Interviews for City Advisory Groups (Estimated Time) 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC 
MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET  (120.03)  

Subject:  Fiscal Year 2014 First Quarter Interim Financial Statements  (120.03) 
 
Recommendation: That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in relation to 

budget for the three months ended September 30, 2013;  
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements for the Three Months 

Ended September 30, 2013; and 
C. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2014 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached Schedule of 
Proposed First Quarter Adjustments. 

 
 (See Council Agenda Item No.10) 

 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER 
(120.03) 

Subject:  Interim Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near Highway 
101  (120.03) 
 
Recommendation that the Ordinance Committee: 
A. Consider a draft ordinance establishing interim air quality design standards for 

development near Highway 101, to implement Policy ER7 of the 2011 General 
Plan; and 

B. Forward the draft ordinance for Planning Commission review and subsequent 
City Council adoption. 



 

11/12/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins  (120.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through November 30, 2013. 
  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meetings of October 22 and 29, 2013 and the regular meeting of 
November 5, 2013 (cancelled). 
  

3. Subject:  Appropriation Of Miscellaneous Grants Funds For Scheduling 
Software Upgrade  (170.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Appropriate $20,000 in the Fiscal Year 2014 Police Department 

Miscellaneous Grants Fund from available reserves for the purchase of an 
upgrade and service package for the InTime Scheduling software; and 

B. Find it in the City's best interest to waive the bidding process as provided 
in Municipal Code 4.52.070(k) and authorize the General Services 
Manager to issue a purchase order in the amount of $20,000 to InTime for 
a software upgrade and annual maintenance for the following four fiscal 
years, in accordance with approved budgets. 

 



 

11/12/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Appropriation Of Asset Forfeiture Funds For The Purchase Of A 
System Upgrade And Digital Forensic Equipment (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Appropriate $8,668 in the Fiscal Year 2014 Police Department Police 

Asset Forfeiture Fund from available reserves for the purchase of an 
upgrade for the NEC fingerprint workstation;  

B. Appropriate $8,632 in the Fiscal Year 2014 Police Department Police 
Asset Forfeiture Fund from available reserves for the purchase of a Micro 
Systemation XRY software for the forensic analysis of mobile device 
digital data evidence;  

C. Find it in the City's best interest to waive the formal bid process as 
authorized in Municipal Code Section 4.52.080(k) and authorize the City's 
General Services Manager to issue a sole source purchase order to NEC 
for an upgrade to the fingerprint workstation; and 

D. Find it in the City's best interest to waive the formal bid process as 
authorized in Municipal Code Section 4.52.080(k) and authorize the City's 
General Services Manager to issue a sole source purchase order to Micro 
Systemation for the XRY software application used to perform secure 
forensic extraction of digital data. 

 

5. Subject:  Request To Restate And Amend Covenant On Property Located 
At 203, 215, And 221 Hitchcock Way ("Rancho Franciscan Apartments")  
(330.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a Restated and Amended Declaration 
of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions Imposed on Real Property 
("Covenant") to Comply with Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
Requirements Concerning Age Discrimination and Subordination of the Covenant 
to a New HUD Insured Loan During the Term of the Loan and Authorize the 
Community Development Director to Execute Such Agreements and Related 
Documents, Subject to Approval as to Form by the City Attorney, as Necessary. 
  

6. Subject:  Avigation And Noise Easement For 7000 Hollister Avenue, Goleta 
(560.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute and record a grant 

deed of avigation and noise easement and agreement imposing conditions on 
real property by and between Goleta Hollister, LLC and the City of Santa 
Barbara; and 
 

(Cont’d) 



 

11/12/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

6. (Cont’d) 
 
B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City Of 

Santa Barbara Accepting an Avigation and Noise Easement Imposing 
Conditions on Real Property known as Assessor's Parcel Numbers 073-
030-020 and 073-030-021. 

 

7. Subject:  Cancellation Of Certain Council Meetings In 2014  (120.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council cancel the regular Council Meetings on the 
following dates:  January 21, February 18, April 1, May 27, July 8, August 19, 
August 26, September 2, December 2,  December 23, December 30, 2014. 
  

8. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Amending Lease With Richones Inc., 
Doing Business As Chuck's Waterfront Grill, For Office Space At 113 
Harbor Way  (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council  adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving Lease Amendment Number 
One to Lease Number 23,328 with Richones Inc., Doing Business As Chuck's 
Waterfront Grill, for Office Space Located at 113 Harbor Way #145 and #150 at a 
Monthly Rate of $2,519. 
  

NOTICES 

9. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 7, 2013, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11/12/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

10. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2014 First Quarter Interim Financial Statements  
(120.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in 

relation to budget for the three months ended September 30, 2013;  
B. Accept the fiscal year 2014 Interim Financial Statements for the Three 

Months Ended September 30, 2013; and 
C. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2014 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached 
Schedule of Proposed First Quarter Adjustments. 

 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  Emergency Shelter Zoning Discussion  (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council provide direction to Community Development 
staff related to the implementation of Senate Bill 2 (SB2), (as enacted in 2007 as 
Government Code Section 65583), requiring that every municipality identify 
zoning intended to encourage and facilitate "emergency shelters". 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

12. Subject:  General Plan Safety Element Update  (610.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the 2013 Safety Element 
Update to the General Plan and Making Environmental Findings Pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act. 
  

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

13. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups  (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and  
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 19, 2013. 

(Estimated Time:  4:00 p.m.) 

 



 

11/12/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

14. Subject:  Conference with Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation  (160.03) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Donald 
Sipple, and New Cingular Wireless PSC LLC, et al., v. The City of Alameda,  
California, et al., LASC Case No. BC432270 

Scheduling: Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report: None anticipated 

  

15. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator  (440.05) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the General 
Bargaining Unit, Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Hourly Bargaining Unit, 
Police Management Association, and regarding salaries and fringe benefits for 
certain unrepresented management and confidential employees. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 45 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

  

ADJOURNMENT 
EVENING SESSION  

 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

DATE: November 12, 2013 Dale Francisco, Chair 
TIME: 12:30 P.M.  Bendy White  
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Cathy Murillo 
 630 Garden Street  
 
James L. Armstrong  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Finance Director 

 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2014 First Quarter Interim Financial Statements 
 
Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in relation to 

budget for the three months ended September 30, 2013; 
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements for the Three Months Ended 

September 30, 2013; and 
C. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2014 appropriations and 

estimated revenues as detailed in the attached Schedule of Proposed First Quarter 
Adjustments. 

 
(See Council Agenda Item No. 10) 

 
 

 



CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: November 12, 2013 Grant House, Chair 
TIME:  12:30 p.m. Frank Hotchkiss 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Randy Rowse 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Nina Johnson                                                Stephen P. Wiley 
Assistant To City Administrator                        City Attorney 
 
Kate Whan 
Administrative Analyst 
                                                

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 
Subject:  Interim Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near Highway 101 
 
Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee: 

A. Consider a draft ordinance establishing interim air quality design standards for 
development near Highway 101, to implement Policy ER7 of the 2011 General 
Plan; and  

B. Forward the draft ordinance for Planning Commission review and subsequent City 
Council adoption. 

 



Code No. 120.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 

TO: Ordinance Committee members 

FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 

SUBJECT: Interim Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near 
Highway 101 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  That the Ordinance Committee: 

A. Consider a draft ordinance establishing interim air quality design standards for 
development near Highway 101, to implement Policy ER7 of the 2011 General 
Plan; and  

B. Forward the draft ordinance for Planning Commission review and subsequent City 
Council adoption. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed ordinance (Attachment 1) would establish interim project review criteria 
and design standards for applicable new development within 250 feet of Highway 101. 

Background 

The California Air Resources Board and Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control 
District recommend that local agencies limit development of sensitive land uses in close 
proximity to highways (e.g., residences, schools), in order to reduce potential health 
hazards associated with vehicle exhaust, including diesel particulates. 

The Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the 2011 General Plan update 
evaluated this issue. The EIR analysis concluded that an interim policy for limiting new 
development of sensitive land uses within 250 feet of Highway 101 would mitigate the 
citywide air quality impact of future development to a less than significant level until air 
pollution and diesel particulate levels were reduced through planned State regulations 
or other means. 

Interim Policy ER7 for limiting new development near Highway 101 was carefully 
considered by the Planning Commission and City Council with input from agencies, 
property owners, and the general public, and was adopted as part of the 2011 General 
Plan Update (Attachment 2). Implementation Measure ER7.1 directs that the City 
establish project review criteria for new development to implement this policy. 

 



Council Agenda Report:  Ordinance Committee 
Interim Air Quality Design Standards for Development Near Highway 101 
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

On February 14, 2012, City Council adopted Resolution 12-013 establishing applicable 
types of new development for implementing Policy ER7 (Attachment 3). Council also 
directed staff to meet with the Ordinance Committee to consider project review criteria, 
and return to Council for their adoption. 

Summary of Draft Ordinance Components 

Purpose and Intent. The intent of temporary design standards limiting development 
close to Highway 101 is to protect the public health, safety, and welfare. The regulations 
would limit the number of additional people potentially receiving extensive exposure to 
air pollution from highway vehicle exhaust, including diesel particulates, and reduce the 
exposure level from residents and occupants of new development. 

Definitions. Sensitive Individuals are identified as persons most susceptible to adverse 
effects from poor air quality, including children, the elderly, and people who are ill or 
have serious chronic medical conditions. Extensive Occupancy or Exposure means 
daily occupancy or frequent lengthy visits of many hours occurring repeatedly over 
many years. Sensitive Land Uses are land uses that typically involve extensive 
occupancy or exposure periods by sensitive individuals, including residences, 
retirement and nursing homes, schools, and large family day care facilities. 

Applicability. The interim regulations would apply to new development on properties 
located (in whole or in part) within 250 feet of Highway 101, as measured from the outer 
edge of the nearest travel lane (not including highway on- and off-ramps).  

New Development includes: (a) The development of two or more residential units on a 
vacant lot;  (b) The addition of one or more new residential unit(s) to a lot with existing 
development;  (c) A substantial addition (greater than 50% of floor area existing as of 
December 2011); (d) A new building for sensitive land uses (schools, large family day 
care, community care facilities); (e) Demolition and replacement with structures for 
residential or other sensitive land uses; (f) A change of use of an existing building is not 
considered new development, unless the use is changed to a sensitive land use. 

Exemptions. Projects exempt from these regulations include: (1) Site locations where 
Highway 101 has a State highway roadside sound wall between the highway and 
project; and (2) Project applications submitted or approved prior to December 1, 2011 
when Policy ER7 was adopted. Minor additions and remodels, and structures for non-
residential land uses are also exempt. 

Development Standards.  

(A) Proximity to Highway 101 and Project Design Features: New development within 
250 feet of Highway 101 shall be prohibited unless the City determines that project 
design features satisfactorily address air quality, with consideration of identified design 
guidelines. The design guidelines address building distance from the highway, Location 
of outdoor living space locations, vegetative screening and physical barriers, and air 
filtration. 



Council Agenda Report:  Ordinance Committee 
Interim Air Quality Design Standards for Development Near Highway 101 
November 12, 2013 
Page 3 

 

(B) Ventilation: New development located within 250 feet shall incorporate a central 
ventilation system rated at Minimum Efficiency Reporting Value of MERV-13 or better, 
and owner shall provide lessees with filter operations manual.  

Ordinance Implementation 

Ordinance provisions would be applied by staff and implemented through: the Public 
Information Counter and City web site; the Pre-Application Review Team (PRT); the 
Development Application Review Team (DART); preliminary plan checks for Design 
Review projects; and plan checks for Building Permit projects. 

Tracking State Regulations and Air Quality Changes 

Policy ER7 is identified as an interim policy until such time as diesel particulate levels 
and hazards are reduced through further planned California Air Resources Board 
(CARB) regulations or other means. The policy provides that the City will track CARB 
regulatory efforts and progress on air quality improvements. 

Staff is in communication with Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District staff, 
who are assisting the City in monitoring State activities. The next phase of diesel 
particulate regulations (heavy truck retrofits), which had been put on hold following the 
State’s economic downturn, is underway. Scientific studies1 have estimated that diesel 
particulate levels statewide were substantially reduced in the years 1990-2010 due to in 
place State regulations. 

Updated measurement or modeling of air quality conditions along Highway 101 within 
the City would be conducted periodically as part of the General Plan Adaptive 
Management Program, after which the interim ordinance provisions will be reassessed. 
     1  UCSD, Black Carbon and the Regional Climate of California, April 2013 

Review and Adoption Process 

Consideration of Air Quality Policy ER7 during the 2011 General Plan update included 
notification of property owners, Environmental Impact Report, public workshops, and 
hearings at the Planning Commission, Council Subcommittee, and City Council. 

Environmental review of the proposed implementing ordinance under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is provided by the Program EIR for the 2011 General 
Plan. Section 15183 of the State CEQA Guidelines mandates that projects that are 
consistent with General Plan policies for which an EIR was certified shall not require 
additional environmental review. 

Staff recommends that the Ordinance Committee consider the Draft Ordinance for 
implementing General Plan Air Quality Policy ER7, and forward it for Planning 
Commission review and subsequent City Council adoption. 



Council Agenda Report:  Ordinance Committee 
Interim Air Quality Design Standards for Development Near Highway 101 
November 12, 2013 
Page 4 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Draft Ordinance: Interim Design Standards for Development near Highway 101  
2. 2011 General Plan Policy ER7. 
3. City Council Resolution 12-013 implementing ER7 
4. Map of 250-foot Buffer Area and Sound Walls along Highway 101 

 
PREPARED BY: Barbara R. Shelton, Project Planner/ Environmental Analyst 

SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 

APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 11/12/13 

1 
Svincent/Ordinances/Community Development/General Plan Implementation/Highway 101 Air Quality 
Design Standards/Ordinance Committee Discussion Draft 11-12-13 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING TITLE 22 OF 
THE SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE BY 
ADDING CHAPTER 22.65 ESTABLISHING DESIGN 
STANDARDS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT NEAR 
HIGHWAY 101 TO IMPLEMENT POLICY ER7 OF 
THE 2011 GENERAL PLAN. 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE:  The City Council adopts the ordinance codified in Chapter 22.65 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code based on the following findings: 

A. The California Air Resources Board and the Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District 
have recommended reducing potential health hazards associated with vehicle exhaust, including 
diesel particulates, by limiting development of new residences and other sensitive land uses in close 
proximity to highways. 

B. A Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) certified for the City of Santa Barbara 2011 General 
Plan update evaluated air quality effects associated with new development in close proximity to 
Highway 101 during the General Plan time horizon. The EIR identified an interim policy for limiting 
new development of sensitive land uses within 250 feet of Highway 101. The EIR analysis concluded 
that the interim policy would mitigate the potential air quality impact associated with future 
development within the City near Highway 101 to a less than significant level until such time as 
statewide diesel particulate levels and associated health hazards are reduced by planned State 
regulations or other means. 

C. Interim policy ER7 adopted as part of the City of Santa Barbara 2011 General Plan directs that the 
development of new sensitive land uses within 250 feet of Highway 101 be limited unless the City 
determines that diesel emission risks or exposures are satisfactorily addressed. Implementation 
Measure ER7.1 directs that the City establish development standards for new development to 
implement the policy, and track State regulations and progress on reducing highway diesel 
particulates pollution to determine when the interim policy is to be retired. 

SECTION TWO:  Title 22 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended by adding Chapter 22.65 
titled “Design Standards for Development Near Highway 101” to read as follows: 

22.65.010 Purpose and Intent. 

It is the purpose of this section to limit and regulate development within close proximity to Highway 101 
in a manner that promotes the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City of Santa Barbara. 

Pursuant to 2011 General Plan Policy ER7, the design standards in this Chapter are intended to limit the 
number of people, including Sensitive Individuals, who receive Extensive Exposure to potential air 
pollution hazards from highway vehicle exhaust including diesel particulates, until such time as statewide 
diesel particulate levels are reduced by planned State regulations or other means. 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 11/12/13 

2 
Svincent/Ordinances/Community Development/General Plan Implementation/Highway 101 Air Quality 
Design Standards/Ordinance Committee Discussion Draft 11-12-13 

 

22.65.020  Definitions. 

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings: 

A. Extensive Occupancy or Exposure. Substantial time periods involving daily occupancy or frequent 
lengthy visits of many hours occurring repeatedly over many years, such as typically experienced 
with residential land uses and schools. 

B. Sensitive Individuals. Segments of the population most susceptible to adverse affects from poor air 
quality (including from diesel particulates) including children, the elderly, and people who are ill or 
have serious chronic respiratory, heart, or other medical conditions that are exacerbated by air 
pollution. 

C. Sensitive Land Uses. Land uses that typically involve Extensive Occupancy or Exposure by 
Sensitive Individuals, including residences; nursing homes, retirement homes, and other community 
care facilities; schools; and large family day care facilities. Land uses not considered sensitive include 
retail, commercial services, and offices. 

D. State Highway Roadside Sound Wall.  A roadside sound wall constructed by the California 
Department of Transportation. 

22.65.030  Applicability and Exemptions. 

A. Applicability. 

 1. Location. Any property that is located in whole or part within 250 feet of Highway 101 as 
measured from the outer edge of the nearest highway travel lane (excluding highway on- and off-
ramps) is subject to the requirements of this Chapter, unless identified as exempt in Subsection B 
of this Section 22.65.030.  

 2. Types of Development. The following types of development are subject to the requirements of 
this Chapter, unless identified as exempt in Subsection B of this Section 22.65.030: 

a. The development of two or more new residential units on a vacant lot. 

b. The addition of one or more new residential units to a lot on which development existed as of 
December 1, 2011. 

c. An addition to an existing residential unit that increases the net floor area of  the residential 
unit by more than 50% of the net floor area that existed within the residential unit as of 
December 1, 2011. If multiple additions are made to a residential unit during the time this 
Chapter is in effect, the amount of the additional floor area shall be measured in the 
aggregate.  

d.   The development of a new building for the following Sensitive Land Uses: schools; large    
family day care facilities; and nursing homes, retirement homes, and other community care 
facilities. 

e. The demolition of an existing building and its replacement with a building for intended for 
residential use or other Sensitive Land Uses. 



ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 11/12/13 

3 
Svincent/Ordinances/Community Development/General Plan Implementation/Highway 101 Air Quality 
Design Standards/Ordinance Committee Discussion Draft 11-12-13 

f. A change of use of an existing building from a use not defined as a Sensitive Land Use to a 
Sensitive Land Use. 

B. Exemptions. The following projects are exempt from this Chapter: 
 

 1. Projects on sites where a State Highway Roadside Sound Wall is located between the highway 
and project site. 

2. Projects with applications submitted to the City before December 1, 2011 for development 
permits including a Master Application, building permit plan check, or for other development 
approval, where the application has not expired. 

3. Projects that received a final approval from the City prior to December 1, 2011 where the 
approval remains valid. 

4. Projects where the developer can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or the Director’s designee that site-specific climatic or topographic conditions avoid or 
address the air quality risks from Highway 101 on the site.  

Nothing in this Subsection B prevents an applicant from incorporating the design standards specified in 
Section 22.65.040 to exempt projects on a voluntary basis. 

22.65.040  Design Standards for Air Quality. 

The following design standards apply to development to which this Chapter applies:  

A.  Proximity to Highway 101 and Project Design Features. New development for Sensitive Land 
Uses shall be prohibited from locating within 250 feet of Highway 101 unless the City Community 
Development Director or designee determines that project design features satisfactorily address air 
quality risks. The Director’s determination shall take into consideration the following guidelines that 
identify methods of reducing exposure to diesel particulates and other air pollutants: 

 1. Distance from Highway 101. Structures and outdoor living areas for Sensitive Land Uses should 
be located as far from Highway 101 as feasible. For mixed-use projects, buildings and areas 
expected to have Extensive Occupancy or Exposure by Sensitive Individuals should be located 
furthest from the highway, while facilities for non-sensitive populations and/or involving short-
term use (such as parking facilities) should be placed closer to the highway. 

 2. Building Orientation and Outdoor Living Areas. Buildings involving Sensitive Land Uses 
should be oriented with doors and outdoor living areas on the side of the building away from the 
highway in order to provide physical screening by the building.  

 3. Vegetative Screening and Physical Barriers. Development involving Sensitive Land Uses 
should incorporate dense, tiered vegetative plantings between the highway and the project, which 
helps to remove air pollutants and reduce diesel particulate concentrations. Vegetation should 
largely entail trees with complex foliage (leafy vegetation or with needles) that allow substantial 
in-canopy airflow; preferably in multiple rows, using tree plantings of tall and uniform height that 
retain foliage year-round and have a long life span. Inclusion of physical barriers such as walls 
and fences between the highway and the project also help to reduce air pollutant exposure levels. 



ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE DISCUSSION DRAFT 11/12/13 

4 
Svincent/Ordinances/Community Development/General Plan Implementation/Highway 101 Air Quality 
Design Standards/Ordinance Committee Discussion Draft 11-12-13 

 4. Air Infiltration. In addition to a filtration system as required in Section 22.65.040 B, projects 
should locate air intake vents on the side of building away from the highway and use double-
paned windows throughout. 

 5. Other Measures. The developer of a Sensitive Land Use that will be located within 250 feet of 
Highway 101 may propose other measures that have a demonstrated ability to reduce highway air 
pollution exposure.  

B. Interior Air Filtration System. New development located within 250 feet of Highway 101which is 
not exempt pursuant to Section 22.65.030.B shall incorporate a central ventilation system with air 
filtration rated at Minimum Efficiency Reporting Value of “MERV13” or better for enhanced 
particulate removal efficiency. The owner of any development subject to this requirement shall attach 
a copy of the operator’s manual for the central ventilation and filtration system as an exhibit to every 
lease of the building or any portion of the building. 

22.65.050  Maintenance of Design Features. 

Design features incorporated into an approved project design pursuant to Section 22.65.040 shall be 
maintained as long as this Chapter remains in effect. 

 

SECTION THREE.  This Ordinance shall be repealed when the City Council determines that the health 
risk posed from toxic air contaminants due to Extensive Occupancy in proximity to Highway 101 falls 
below a cancer health risk of 10 cases per one million persons. 



Council Ordinance Committee 
Interim Development Standards for Development near Highway 101 
November 12, 2013 
 

Attachment 2 
 Page 1  

 
City of Santa Barbara 2011 General Plan, Environmental Resources Element 

  AIR QUALITY POLICY ER 7   

 
 
ER 7 Highway 101 Set Back 
 
New development of residential or other sensitive receptors (excluding minor 
additions or remodels of existing homes or one unit on vacant property) on lots of 
record within 250 feet of U.S. Hwy 101 will be prohibited in the interim period until 
California Air Resources Board (CARB) phased diesel emissions regulations are 
implemented and/or until the City determines that diesel emission risks can be 
satisfactorily reduced or that a project’s particulate exposure level is sufficiently 
reduced. The City will monitor the progress of CARB efforts and progress on 
other potential efforts or measures to address diesel emissions risks. 
 
Possible Implementation Actions to be Considered 
 
ER 7.1 Review Criteria. Prepare project review criteria for the set-back area. 
 
ER 7.2 Barriers and Sound Walls. Pursue funding and installation of sound walls, 
trees and shrubs along unprotected areas of U.S. Hwy 101 to create a 
barrier to reduce particulate transmissions. Barriers and sound walls to be 
consistent with the Highway Santa Barbara Coastal Parkway Design 
Guidelines. 

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



Bodega Ln

Mi
ss

ion
Mi

ss
ion

Ca
ny

on
Ca

ny
on

Ho
pe

 R
an

ch
Ho

pe
 R

an
ch

La
s P

os
ita

s
La

s P
os

ita
s

   V
all

ey
   V

all
ey

No
rth

sid
e A

rea
No

rth
sid

e A
rea

Mo
nte

cit
o

Mo
nte

cit
o

State
 St

State
 St

! (15
4

£ ¤10
1

Cota 
St

Gard
en 

St

Milpa
s S

t

Hope Ave

Bath
 St

Cota S
t

Gard
en 

St

Modo
c R

d

Mounta
in Dr

Chap
ala

 St

Haley St

Ca
bri

llo
 Bl

vd

De L
a V

ina
 St

Anac
apa

 St

Carri
llo S

t

Olive
 St

Cast
illo 

St

Sola St

Lag
una

 St

Cli
ff D

r

Hope Ave

Alamar Ave

Aliso
s S

t

Als
ton

 R
d

Las Palmas Dr

Chin
o S

t

Sant
a B

arb
ara

 St

Miche
ltore

na S
t

Ortega St

Victo
ria St

San Ysidro Rd

Isla
y S

t

Sh
ore

line
 Dr

Ma
rin

a D
r

San Roque Rd

Hot Springs Rd

Anap
amu S

t

Meigs Rd

Arrell
aga S

t

Tunnel Rd

La Cumbre Rd

Gilles
pie

 St

Figuero
a S

t

Sta
te 

St

Salin
as 

St

Su
mm

it R
d

Valerio S
t

Pedre
gosa St

Missi
on S

t

San 
Andr

es 
St

Canon P
erdid

o S
t

Ala
me

da
 Pa

dre
 Se

rra

Picacho Ln

As
hle

y R
d

Grove Ln

Maso
n St

Hil
l R

d

Sole
dad

 St

Padre
 St

Mi
ss

ion
 R

idg
e R

d

To
rin

o D
r

De La Guerra 
St

Mi
ram

on
te 

Dr

Moun
tain

 Ave

Coyote Rd

Via Hierba

Las
 Canoas R

d
Yanonali

 St

Po
rte

su
ell

o A
ve

Ol
d C

oa
st 

Hw
y

Robb
ins 

St

La Vista Rd

Los
 Olivo

s St

Quar
ant

ina
 St

Cold Springs Rd

Lla
no

 Av
e

Mont
e D

r

Las Positas Rd

Pa
ler

mo
 D

r

Mission Canyon Rd

Middle Rd

Via
 La

gun
a

Gr
an

d A
ve

Co
ne

jo R
d

Br
ae

ma
r D

r

Ma
nit

ou
 Rd

Cre
sta

 Av
e

Olive Mill Rd

Monteci
to S

t

La
s A

ltu
ras

 R
d

Ca
lle 

No
gu

era

Lom
a A

lta 
Dr

Alan Rd

Nopa
l St

Cantera Ave

Oliver Rd

Ba
rke

r P
as

s R
d

Pueb
lo St

Pu
es

ta 
De

l S
ol

Cana
da 

St

Be
l A

ir D
r

El Cielito Rd

Ch
an

ne
l D

r

Flora Vista Dr

Lag
o D

r

Milpa
s S

t

La
s T

un
as

 Rd

Northridge Rd

Ca
lle 

Ro
sal

es

Mesa Ln

Via Tranquilla

Lo
ma

 St

Butterfly Ln

Cieneguitas Rd

Palomino Rd

La
 C

oli
na

 R
d

Consta
nce Ave

Sa
n M

igu
el 

Av
e

La 
Marin

a D
r

Vol
unt

ario
 St

Carpin
teria S

t

Bo
rto

n D
r

Via Chaparral

Gl
en

vie
w 

RdCa
mi

no
 Vi

ejo
 R

d

Ro
ble

 Ln

Quinie
ntos 

St

Fellowship Rd

Calle De Los Amigos

Hitchcock Way

Mohawk Rd

Fo
oth

ill 
Ln

Veronica Springs Rd

Nin
os

 Dr

Dolores Dr

Ma
rip

os
a D

r

Eu
cal

ypt
us 

Hil
l R

d

Sycamore Canyon Rd

Jun
iper

o S
t

Ga
rci

a R
d

Bo
nn

ym
ed

e D
r

Cooper Rd

Riven Rock Rd

Pr
im

av
era

 R
d

Debra
 Dr

San 
Pasc

ual
 St

Canon View Rd

Es
tre

lla 
Dr

Palisades Dr

Sea Ranch Dr

Cheltenham Rd

Tal
lan

t R
d

Via
 Pr

es
ad

a
Ce

da
r L

n

Serena Rd

Barger Canyon Rd

Cre
cie

nte
 Dr

Foxen Dr

Sprin
g S

t

Via
 D

ieg
o

Morada Ln

Calle Laureles

Ca
lle 

Fre
sn

o

Via
 Es

pe
ran

za

Co
wles

 Rd

Cre
stli

ne 
Dr

Canon Dr

Sc
ho

ol 
Ho

us
e R

d

Jesusita Ln

Miradero Dr

Quinto
 St

Sta
nle

y D
r

Nicholas Ln

Ho
lly 

Rd

Oak Rd

Sa
n R

em
o D

r

Willowglen Rd

La 
En

tra
da

Onta
re R

d
Verano Dr

Wy
an

t R
d

Parra Grande Ln

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Del Mar Ave

Clea
rvie

w Rd

La
s C

an
oa

s L
n

Sc
en

ic 
Dr

Pa
ter

na
 R

d

Calle
 Cesa

r C
hav

ez

Clinton Ter

Jim
eno

 Rd

Las
 Onda

s

Hig
h R

d

Ol
ive

 Av
e

Hil
lcr

es
t R

d

Rametto Rd

Ja
me

so
n L

n

Treasure Dr

Mc
Ca

w A
ve

Westmont Rd

Ma
dro

na
 D

r

La
su

en
 R

d

San R
afael Ave

Ex
ete

r P
l

Toyon Dr

Eli
se

 W
ay

Sa
ma

rka
nd

 Dr

San Nicolas

Jer
ry 

Ha
rw

in 
Pk

y

Ca
lle 

Galic
ia

Su
ns

et 
Rd

Mu
rre

ll R
d

Rosario Dr

Pimiento Ln

Juanita Ave

Via
 Lu

ce
ro

Cocopah Dr

Gl
en

de
ss

ary
 Ln

Hillsi
de 

Rd

Oak 
Park

 Ln

Ke
nm

ore
 Pl

Moun
t C

alva
ry R

d

Ca
mp

an
il D

r

Vernon Rd

Go
lf R

d

Indio M
uerto St

Villa
 Ave

Pitos St

Banana Rd

Lin
co

ln 
Rd

Pir
o L

n

Arc
ad

y R
d

Mi
ra 

Vis
ta 

Av
e

Barra
nca

 Ave

Pu
eb

lo 
Av

e

Tre
mo

nto
 Rd

Via C
hapa

rrall

Me
sa

 S
ch

oo
l L

n

Sk
yv

iew
 D

r

Or
iol

e R
d

Lu
cin

da
 Ln

Cota Ln

Ar
bo

lad
o R

d

Co
as

t V
illa

ge
 C

ir

Ste
rre

tt A
ve

Litchfield Ln

Loyola Dr

Clifto
n S

t

Me
dio

 R
d

Co
ast

 Vi
llag

e R
d

Romaine Dr

Kowalsk
i Ave

Gray
 Av

e

Se
ac

liff

La
 P

alo
ma

 Av
e

Ca
lle

 M
ari

po
sa

Pr
os

pe
ct 

Av
e

Ve
rde

 Vi
sta

 Dr

Weldon R
d

San Clemente

Bo
ler

o D
r

Br
en

ne
r D

r

Laurel Canyon Rd

Via Gaitero

Do
ve

r R
d

Ma
ric

op
a D

r

Bond
 Ave

Alta 
Vista

 Rd

Ocea
no 

Ave

Via
 G

lor
iet

a

Va
len

cia
 Dr

Cook A
ve

Sie
rra

 Vis
ta R

d

Clev
ela

nd 
Ave

Emers
on 

Ave

Re
d R

os
e W

ay

Se
lro

se
 Ln

Salida Del Sol
Caciqu

e St

Lane

Wy
ola

 R
d

Ro
ck

wo
od

 D
r

Mo
ntr

os
e P

l

Salsi
pue

des
 St

Linda Rd

Went
worth

 Ave

Stevens Rd

Cie
lito

 Ln

Camino Medio

Sunrise Hill Ln

Or
am

as
 Rd

Tornoe Rd

Pa
lom

a D
r

Su
ns

et 
Dr

Ca
lab

ria
 D

r

En
co

re 
Dr

Ve
ntu

ra 
Dr

Brosian Way

Apple Grove Ln

Pam
pas

 Ave

Via Rosita

La 
Co

ron
illa 

Dr

Orell
a S

t

Circle
 Dr

Peach Grove Ln

Sa
nta

 Te
res

ita 
Dr

Est
rell

a A
ve

Mont
ere

y S
t

Senda Verde

Ard
en 

Rd

Ch
as

e D
r

Th
e F

air
wa

y

Reddick 
St

Woodland Dr

Maria
na 

Way

Punta
 Gord

a S
t

Lomita Rd

Me
dc

liff
 R

d

Via
 Zo

rro

La Vista Grande

Wo
od

ley
 R

d

Suns
et A

ve

La
s C

an
oa

s P
l

Barcelona Dr

Da
nie

lso
n R

d

Ca
rril

lo 
Rd

Coron
el P

l

Lou Dillon Ln

Eucli
d A

ve

Conejo L
n

El 
Cie

lito

Chel
ham

 Wy

Gutierrez
 St

Fe
rre

lo 
Rd

Ca
lle

cit
a

Rid
ge

 Ln

Ranchito Vista Rd

Be
n L

om
on

d D
r

Westwood Dr

Oran
ge 

Ave

Pesetas Ln

St 
An

n

Eucalyptus Ave

California St

Po
r L

a M
ar 

Dr

Ca
lle 

Mo
nti

lla

Alphonse S
t

Natom
a Ave

Do
ve

r L
n

Kentia Ave

Ayala Ln

Vin
e A

ve

Ma
rily

n W
ay

Orilla
 Del M

ar D
r

Del Oro

Cordova Dr

Old Mill Rd

Rockridge Rd

No
pa

lito
s W

ay

Calle Poniente

Fra
nc

es
ch

i R
d

Wi
llia

ms
 W

y

Cima Linda Ln

Ce
ntin

ela
 Ln

Wh
ite

 Av
e

Camino Alto Rd

El 
Ar

co
 D

r

Lad
era

 St

Orizaba Ln

El Monte Dr

Lorraine Ave

Ca
lle 

An
dal

uci
a

La 
Cim

a R
d

Kenw
ood 

Rd

Cu
erv

o A
ve

Ca
lle

 C
ita

Dulzura Dr

Via
 Al

icia

Los
 Alam

os A
ve

Cu
na

 D
r

Kn
app

 Dr

Eucalyptus Ln

St James Dr

Pa
so

 Ro
ble

s D
r

Glen Albyn Dr

Mountain

Ca
lle 

Cre
spi

s

Via
 Sinu

osa

Ca
me

llia
 Ln

Chiq
uita

 Rd

Vista Vallejo

Bajada Ln

Cre
sce

nt 
Dr

Calle Alamo

Pe
mm

 Pl

Calle Palo Colorado

Pa
ye

ras
 St

Salin
as Pl

Island View Dr

Santa Elena Ln

Mi
ram

ar 
Av

e

Moreno Rd

Humphrey Rd

Ed
gec

liff 
Ln

Bajada

Coro
na 

Del M
ar D

r

Surf View Dr

Plaza Rubio

Sant
a C

ata
lina

Da
wli

sh
 Pl

Ru
bio

 R
d

Fig
 Ave

Pe
pp

er 
Ln

Casian
o Dr

Dre
xe

l D
r

Blanchard
 St

Vis
ta D

el C
am

po

Margo S
t

Merc
ede

s L
n

Santa Cruz Blvd

Santa Isabel Ln

Cuesta Rd

Park Pl

La
s E

nc
ina

s R
d

Po
rto

fin
o W

ay

La Paz Rd

Vernal Ave

Las
 Posita

s P
l

Ric
ard

o A
ve

Ca
lle 

So
ria

Coron
el S

t

Ca
lle

 C
ari

da

Hermosilla Dr

Vis
ta 

Ar
roy

o

Pe
sc

ad
ero

 D
r

Aurora Ave

Iaiqua Ln

Lower Hyde

Salv
ar R

d

Calle Cerro

Sa
n J

os
e L

n

Ea
st L

as 
Tun

as 
Rd

Overlook Ln

Ca
lle 

Lin
are

s

Via
 D

ich
os

a

El Prado Rd

Miss
ion

 Cany
on

Bro
ok 

Ln

Oak Ave

Indian Ln

Co
lin

a L
n

Mission Park Dr

Calle Cortita

Hele
na 

Ave

Rockbridge Rd

Hot Springs L
n

Calle Malaga

Ot
on

o D
r

Ria
lto

 Ln

Bro
okt

ree
 Rd

Lighthouse Rd

Naranjo Dr

Via Rosa

Bit
hy

nia
 R

d

Union S
t

Ca
lle 

Ma
de

ra

Arch
er's

 Aly

Los
 Pa

tos
 W

ay

Ma
rqu

ard
 Te

r

Po
zz

o C
ir

Crestview Ln

Betty Dr

Santo Tomas Ln

Sant
a Y

nez
 St

Harbor View Dr

Consuelo Rd

Inv
iern

o D
r

Wi
nd

so
r W

y

Sa
nta

 M
ari

a L
n

Ca
lle

 Pi
no

n

Vis
ta 

De
l M

ar 
Dr

St Fr
anc

is W
ay

Santa Fe

 Depaul Dr

Alisa Ln

Rose
 Ave

Las Manos Ln

Calle Granada

Nir
va

na
 R

d

Se
a L

edg
e L

n

Pa
se

o F
err

elo

Sa
n P

ab
lo 

Ln

Ca
pri

 D
r

Calle C
erri

to

Pa
se

o T
ran

qu
illo

Hig
h R

idg
e L

n

Ar
rib

a W
ay

Pico Ave

Ga
rde

n L
n

Lloyd Ave

Hacienda Dr

Reef Ct

Vista Madera

Monte Vista Ln

Veronica Pl

Diana Ln

Co
nn

ie 
Wa

y

Skyline Cir

Ca
rol

 Av
e

Alston Pl

Mission Oak Ln

Mi
mo

sa
 Ln

Braemar Ranch Ln

Ca
lle

 C
ed

ro

Ale
ed

a L
n

Isleta Ave

La
 La

de
ra 

Dr

El Rancho Rd

Arr
oy

o A
ve

Luneta Plz

Stonecreek RdLa Senda Dr

Ca
lle 

Alm
on

te

Winther Way

San Julian Ave

Lo
ma

 M
ed

ia 
Rd

De La Vista
 Ave

Wye Rd

Ar
dil

la 
Dr

Sa
n G

ab
rie

l L
n

Shas
ta Ln

Alcala Ln

Richland Dr

Pa
seo

 De
l R

efu
gio

Broadmoor Plz

Los
 Aguaje

s Ave

Curle
y A

ve

Donze
 Ave

La 
Cade

na

Dix
on

 St

Vis
ca

ino
 R

d

Mo
nte

 C
ris

to 
Ln

Dutto
n A

ve

Via
 De

l C
ielo

El 
Ca

mi
no

 D
e L

a L
uz

Sycamore Vista Rd

Via Sevilla

La
 R

ad
a

Olive Mill Ln

Maril
la A

ve

To
do

s S
an

tos
 Ln

Casi
tas

 Rd

Camphor Pl

Nogales 
Ave

Calle Bello

Greenworth Pl

Ha
rro

ld 
Av

e

Plaza
 Del Monte

Ca
ny

on
 Ac

res
 D

r

Vista
 De L

a P
laya

La Lita Ln

Laguna Blanca Dr

Nielp
ark 

St

Ediso
n A

ve

La P
az A

ve

Calle Alella

Orange Grove Ave

Panc
hita

 Pl

Live Oak Ln

Rose Ln

Theater Ln

Palm
 Ave

Terrace Rd

Co
ron

ad
a C

ir

Edge
wate

r W
ay

Mir
a M

es
a D

r

Es
se

x S
t

Lin
co

lnw
oo

d D
r

Dian
a R

d

De
l P

arq
ue

 D
r

Leslie Dr

Po
r L

a M
ar 

Ci
r

Carrizo Dr

Eliza
bet

h S
t

Tye Rd

Free
mont Pl

Philin
da 

Ave

La
ng

lo 
Te

r

Santa Angela Ln

Pa
rks

 Rd

Ruth A
ve

Crestwood Dr

Mellif
ont

 Ave

Wilso
n S

t

Waldro
n Ave

Pie
dm

on
t R

d

Seaview Rd

Jes
mary 

Ln

Halc
yon

 Ln

Arlington Ave

De
erp

ath
 R

d

£ ¤10
1

! (19
2

! (19
2

! (19
2

Sa
n P

ed
ro 

Ln

Andante Rd

Kimber
ly A

ve

Mulbe
rry A

ve

La
 C

om
ba

du
ra 

Rd

Tho
mas A

ve

Palm Tree Ln

Ense
nada S

t

Din
sm

ore
 Ln

Brad
bur

y A
ve

Tie
rra

 C
iel

o L
n

Mission Canyon Ln

El Case
rio

Ce
rrit

o L
n

Gilles
pie

 Way

Lowena Dr

Law
rence

 Ave

Lig
hth

ou
se

 P
l

Santi
ago Rd

Calle Elegante

Depot Rd

Sole
dad

 Ave

El Ve
dad

o L
n

Oak Spring Ln

Vis
ta 

Cla
ra 

Rd

Pe
riw

ink
le 

Ln

Ro
se

ma
ry 

Ln

La Cumbre Ln

Ho
sm

er 
Ln

Selwyn Cir

Celine Dr

Mira Monte Ave

Vir
gin

ia 
Rd

Calle Las Caleras

Wellin
gto

n A
ve

La
 Ve

red
a L

n

Fe
llo

ws
hip

 Ln

La Milpita Rd

Ra
nc

ho
 As

ole
ad

o D
r

Lom
a V

ista
 Ave

Eque
stria

n Ave

Gr
ee

n M
ea

do
ws

 R
d

Rin
co

n V
ist

a R
d

Ro
ck

cre
ek

 R
d

Ali
sa

l R
d

Richard
son

 Ave

Ealand Pl

On
tar

e H
ills

 Ln

Mont
gom

ery
 St

Ric
he

lle 
Ln

Mo
nte

 Vi
sta

 R
d

Jua
na 

Maria
 Ave

Ele
ven

 Oa
ks 

Ln

Mead
ow

 W
ood

 Ln

So
nrie

nte
 Rd

Myrtle
 Ave

La
s A

ltu
ras

 Ci
r

De
 La

 G
ue

rra
 Te

r

Sycamore Creek Ln

Via
 An

do
rra

Rin
con

ad
a R

d

Camino Calma

Dibblee Ave

Jen
ning

s Ave

Mi
lpa

s

Meru
 Ln

Lor
ind

a P
l

Greenwell Ln

La C
resta 

Cir

Su
mm

it L
n

Parke
r W

ay

Plaza Ave

Co
lem

an
 Av

e

Citru
s A

ve

Via Rojo

Fo
rtu

na
to 

Wa
y

Cove Mound Dr

Cr
es

ce
nt 

Av
e

Hig
hla

nd 
Dr

Library
 Ave

Sa
n D

ieg
o R

d

Via
 La

s B
ris

as

Calle Corte

Rey 
Rd

Tink
er W

ay

Tra
nsfe

r Ave

Ho
lm

cre
st 

Rd

Bonit
a W

ay

Gree
nrid

ge 
Ln

Hid
de

n H
oll

ow

Fri
ar 

Ln

Fra
nci

sco
 Dr

Americ
an Ave

Morri
son

 Av
e

Mo
do

c R
d

Moun
tain

 Dr

Ma
rip

os
a D

r

Lo
ma

 M
ed

ia 
Rd

Ca
lle

 R
ea

l

De La Guerra 
St

Via
 Lu

ce
ro

San 
Pasc

ual
 St

Mo
un

tai
n D

r

Shoreline Dr

Sola St

Chap
ala

 St
Ke

nw
oo

d R
d

Los Olivos St

Bath
 St

Gr
an

d A
ve

Milpa
s S

t

Ortega St

Eucalyptus Hill Rd

Cast
illo 

St

Valerio S
t

Pedre
gosa St

Estrella Dr

Me
sa

 R
d

El 
Ra

nc
ho

 R
d

Sycamore Canyon Rd

Padre
 St

Ch
an

ne
l D

r

Ve
rde

 Vi
sta

 D
r

Ontare Rd

Los
 Olivo

s St

Re
d R

os
e W

ay

Butterfly Ln

Olive Mill Rd

Alam
eda

 Padr
e S

erra

Cu
erv

o A
ve

Yanonali St

Pedregosa St

Pueb
lo St

Quinto
 St

Ca
lle

 R
ea

l

Victo
ria St

Ed
ge

wa
ter

 W
ay

Sta
te 

St

Palm
 Ave

Canon D
r

Gibraltar Rd

Barker Pass Rd

Maso
n St

Sant
a B

arb
ara

 St

Mo
ntr

os
e P

l

Bath
 St

Arrell
aga S

t

Caciqu
e St

Yanonali
 St

Padre St

Cota S
t

La
 Co

ron
illa

 Dr

Nopa
l St

Salsi
pue

des
 St

Mo
un

tai
n D

r

Eucalyptus Hill Rd

San 
Pasc

ual
 St

Missi
on St

La
su

en
 R

d

Gutierrez
 St

Cuervo Ave

Ca
lle

 C
ita

Calle A
lam

o

Isla
y S

t

Calle Laureles

Monteci
to S

t

Mountain Dr

Cana
da 

St

Valerio S
t

Jun
ipero 

St

Maso
n St

Cuervo Ave

Ho
llis

ter
 Av

e

Jun
ipero 

St

Sa
ma

rka
nd

 Dr

Vol
unt

ario
 St

Westmont Rd

Anac
apa

 St

Figuero
a S

t

Pe
pp

er 
Ln

Yanonali
 St

Hil
lcre

st R
d

Cast
illo 

St

Loma Alta Dr

Co
as

t V
illa

ge
 R

d

De La Guerra 
St

Co
ne

jo 
Rd

Mo
un

tai
n D

r

Figuero
a S

t
Pa

ci
fi

c 
O

ce
an

Pa
ci

fi
c 

O
ce

an
DR

AF
T

Oc
tob

er 
20

13

±
0

0.5
1

0.2
5

Mi
le

1:3
0,0

00

Hi
gh

wa
y 1

01
 25

0 F
oo

t S
etb

ac
k

an
d S

ou
nd

wa
ll L

oc
ati

on
s

Ma
p p

rep
are

d b
y C

ity
 of

 Sa
nta

 Ba
rba

ra,
 Pl

an
nin

g D
ivis

ion

Le
ge

nd Ex
ist

ing
 So

un
dw

all
 Lo

ca
tio

ns
25

0 f
oo

t s
etb

ac
k f

rom
 ed

ge
 of

 ne
are

st 
tra

ve
l la

ne

No
te:

 Ex
ist

ing
 so

un
dw

all
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 ar

e p
rov

ide
d b

y C
alt

ran
s a

t 
htt

p:/
/sv

cte
nv

im
s.d

ot.
ca

.go
v/s

ou
nd

wa
ll_

gis
/

25
0 f

oo
t s

etb
ac

k l
ine

 w
as

 di
git

ize
d b

y t
he

 C
ity

 Pl
an

nin
g D

ivis
ion

 
us

ing
 20

12
 ae

ria
ls 

to 
fin

d t
he

 ed
ge

 of
 ne

are
st 

tra
ve

l la
ne

.  T
he

 
ne

are
st 

tra
ve

l la
ne

 do
es

 no
t in

clu
de

 on
-ra

mp
s o

r o
ff-r

am
ps

.

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 Q
:\G

IS
\W

OR
K\a

n\a
rcm

ap
\P

lan
SB

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n\H

igh
wa

y 1
01

 Se
tba

ck
\H

igh
wa

y 1
01

 25
0 f

t s
etb

ac
k a

nd
 so

un
dw

all
s 1

1x
17

.m
xd

ATTACHMENT 4



Agenda Item No. 1 
File Code No. 120.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition – Service Award Pins 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the City’s appreciation to 
employees who are eligible to receive service award pins for their years of service through 
November 30, 2013. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since 1980, the City Employees’ Recognition Program has recognized length of City 
Service.  Service award pins are presented to employees for every five years of service.  
Those employees achieving 25 years of service or more are eligible to receive their pins in 
front of the City Council. 
 
Attached is a list of those employees who will be awarded pins for their service through 
November 30, 2013. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: November 2013 Service Awards 
 
PREPARED BY: Myndi Hegeman, Administrative Specialist 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo López, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 
 

 
 
 
 

NOVEMBER 2013 SERVICE AWARDS 
November 12, 2013 Council Meeting 

 
 
 
 
5 YEARS 
 
Michael Pease, Budget Manager, Finance Department 
Sue Sadler, Code Enforcement Officer, Environmental Services Department 
Paul Diaz, Water Distribution Operator II, Public Works Department 
Jason Remotti, Water Treatment Plant Operator, Public Works Department 
Evan Ellison, Airport Patrol Officer II, Airport Department 
 
 
15 YEARS 
 
Melissa Velasco, Public Safety Dispatcher, Police Department 
Florencio Herrera, Streets Maintenance Worker I, Public Works Department 
 
 
25 YEARS  
 
Gilbert Cash, Fire Captain, Fire Department 
Sheri Markley, Police Records Specialist, Fire Department 
Fernando Arroyo, Senior Custodian, Public Works Department 
Jose Guerrero, Senior Custodian, Public Works Department 
 
 
30 YEARS  
 
William Rodoracio, Fire Captain, Fire Department 
 
 



10/22/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
October 22, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee met at 12:30 p.m.  The Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meets at 
12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date). 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco (arrived at 2:01 p.m.), Frank Hotchkiss, Grant 
House, Cathy Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
City Clerk Services Manager Gwen Peirce. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring October 20-25, As National Friends Of 

Libraries Week (120.04) 
 

Action:  Proclamation presented to Michele Allyn, President of Friends of the 
Santa Barbara Public Library. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Steven Sharpe, Director, Opera SB; Jessica Julian, Soprano, Opera SB; 
Robert Watson, Tenor, Opera SB; Natashia Kislenko, Pianist, Opera SB; Sherrie 
Fischer, Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District; Steve Reynalds; Nancy Tunnell; 
Ethan Shenkman; Cruzito Herrera Cruz; Jenny Castro; Melissa Wilkins; Judith Smith; 
David Diaz; Matthew Kramer; Robert Johns. 
 

NOV 12 2013 #2 



10/22/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2 – 10) 
 
The titles of the ordinances related to Consent Calendar items were read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Rowse/Francisco to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote. 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of October 8, 2013. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

3. Subject:  Junior High Afterschool Sports Program (570.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to 
enter into an agreement with the Santa Barbara Unified School District (SBUSD) 
to conduct the Junior High Afterschool Sport League. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,643 (October 22, 
2013, report from the Parks and Recreation Director). 

4. Subject:  Contract For Drafting Services For The Fiscal Year 2014 Water 
Main Replacement Project (540.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
standard City Professional Services contract with O'Brien & Wall in the amount of 
$47,970 for drafting services for the Fiscal Year 2014 Water Main Replacement 
Project, in a form of agreement acceptable to the City Attorney, and authorize the 
Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $5,000 for extra services 
of O'Brien & Wall that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Contract No. 24,644 (October 22, 2013, 
report from the Public Works Director). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10/22/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

5. Subject:  Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 1712 
Anacapa Street (640.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute and record Parcel Map Number 20,788 for a subdivision at 1712 
Anacapa Street (finding the Parcel Map in conformance with the State Subdivision 
Map Act, the City's Subdivision Ordinance, and the Tentative Subdivision Map), 
and other standard agreements relating to the approved subdivision; and 
authorize the City Engineer to record a removal document for the Land 
Development Agreement when the public improvements are complete.  
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement Nos. 24,645 – 24,647 
(October 22, 2013, report from the Public Works Director). 

6. Subject: Introduction Of Ordinance For 2013 Fire Code Adoption (520.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce, and subsequently adopt, by reading 
of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Repealing 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 8.04 and Adopting a New Chapter 8.04 
Adopting by Reference the 2013 Edition of the California Fire Code, as Published 
by the California Building Standards Commission, Including Appendix Chapter 4 
and Appendices B, BB, C, CC and H of that Code, with Local Amendments. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (October 22, 2013, report from the Fire 
Chief; proposed ordinance). 

7. Subject:  Local Amendments To California Building Codes (640.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce, and subsequently adopt, by reading 
of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 22.04, Adopting by Reference the 
California State Building Codes and Other Related Codes; Adopting Local 
Revisions to Those Codes; and Repealing Ordinance Number 5536. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation (October 22, 2013, report from the 
Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director; proposed 
ordinance). 

NOTICES 

8. The City Clerk has on Thursday, October 17, 2013, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

9. A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday, October 28, 2013, at 1:30 p.m. 
to the property located at 1330 Chapala Street, which is the subject of an appeal 
hearing set for October 29, 2013, at 2:00 p.m. 



10/22/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

10. Receipt of communication advising of vacancy created on the Creeks Advisory 
Committee with the resignation of Stephen Macintosh; the vacancy will be part of 
the next City Advisory Group recruitment. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Finance Committee Chair Dale Francisco reported that the Committee met to hear a 
Staff report regarding the final results of operations, including final reserve balances, for 
the General Fund for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013.  The Committee approved the 
Proposed Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2013, which will be considered by the full 
Council as Agenda Item No. 14. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  State Water Project Contract Extension (540.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation on the role of State 
Water in Santa Barbara's water supply, on the State Water Project contract 
extension, and on the Bay Delta Conservation Plan. 

 
Documents: 

- October 22, 2013, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Water Resources Manager Rebecca Bjork. 
- Central Coast Water Authority:  Executive Director Ray Stokes. 

 
Councilmember Francisco left the meeting at 3:05 p.m. and returned at 3:15 p.m. 
 

By consensus, the Council received the report and their questions were 
answered. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  Casa Esperanza Programmatic Changes  (230.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Amend the City's Program Year 2013-14 Annual Action Plan;  
B. Approve a Revision to Casa Esperanza's Community Development Block 

Grant Agreement for Day Center Services #24,420; and 
(Cont’d) 

 



10/22/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

12. (Cont’d) 
 
C. Authorize the Assistant City Administrator to execute an Agreement with 

Casa Esperanza for the operation of the Winter Shelter from December 1, 
2013 through March 31, 2014, subject to City Attorney approval as to 
form.                                                                                                 

 
Documents: 

- October 22, 2013, report from the Assistant City Administrator/Community 
Development Director. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Community Development Business Manager Sue Gray. 
- Casa Esperanza:  Board of Directors President Reverend Mark Asman, 

Executive Director Michael Foley. 
- Members of the Public:  Jose Arturo Ortiz de Martinez-Gallegos, June 

Sochel, Ethan Shenkman, Robert Burke. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Murillo/White to approve the recommendations; 
Agreement Nos. 24,420.1 and 24,648. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote. 

13. Subject:  Review Of Fiscal Year 2015 Human Services And Community 
Development Block Grant Funding Priorities, Application Release And 
Funding Process (610.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Review and provide input and direction to the Community Development 

and Human Services Committee (CDHSC) on proposed funding priorities 
and preferences for the Fiscal Year 2015 Human Services and 
Community Development Block Grant allocation process;  

B. Authorize staff to release the Fiscal Year 2015 funding application along 
with the committee application review process, criteria and schedule; and 

C. Establish a funding commitment from the Fiscal Year 2015 General Fund 
in the amount of $640,821 for the Human Services Program. 

 
Documents: 

- October 22, 2013, report from the Assistant City Administrator/Community 
Development Director. 

- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 

Speakers: 
Staff:  Community Development Business Manager Sue Gray, Community 
Development Programs Specialist Liz Stotts. 

(Cont’d) 



10/22/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

13. (Cont’d) 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers House/Murillo to approve the recommendations. 
Vote: 

Unanimous voice vote. 
 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
14. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2013 Year-End Results For The General Fund  (230.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hear a report from staff regarding the final results of operations, including 

final reserve balances, for the General Fund for Fiscal Year Ended June 
30, 2013; and 

B. Approve the proposed adjustments to Fiscal Year 2013 estimated 
revenues and appropriations as detailed in the schedule of Proposed 
Budget Adjustments. 

 
Documents: 

- October 22, 2013, report from the Finance Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Finance Director Robert Samario. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers Francisco/Hotchkiss to approve Recommendation B. 

Vote: 
Unanimous voice vote. 

 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 

- Councilmember Murillo reported her attendance at 1) a recent Youth Council 
meeting where community service projects were discussed and 2) South Coast 
Task Force on Youth Gangs, where programming for girls was discussed. 

- Councilmember Rowse reported on his participation in judging the Dream 
Against the Influence Art Competition. 

- Councilmember White reported on the Unity Shoppe Open House that he had 
attended. 

- Councilmember Hotchkiss spoke regarding the Riviera Association’s 100th 
Anniversary celebration that he attended. 

- Mayor Schneider spoke regarding the New Noise Music Festival that she 
attended. 

 
 



10/22/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

RECESS 
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 4:39 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Items No. 15 and 16.  She stated no reportable 
action is anticipated. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

16. Subject:  Conference with Legal Counsel - Potential Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider possible 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(4) of Section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed. (one potential case) 
          Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
          Report:  None anticipated 

 
Documents: 

October 8, 2013, report from the City Attorney. 
 

Time: 
4:40 p.m. – 6:06 p.m. 
 

No report made. 
 

15. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per 
Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator 
Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the 
General Bargaining Unit, Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Hourly 
Bargaining Unit, Police Management Association, and regarding salaries and 
fringe benefits for certain unrepresented management and confidential 
employees. 
          Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
          Report:  None anticipated 
  
Documents: 

October 8, 2013, report from the Assistant City Administrator. 
 

Time: 
  6:07 p.m. – 6:18 p.m. 
 

No report made. 
 
 
 
 



10/22/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 6:18 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  GWEN PEIRCE 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 



11/5/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 5, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
The regular meeting of the City Council, scheduled for 2:00 p.m. on November 5, 2013, 
was cancelled by the Council on July 30, 2013. 
 
The next regular meeting of the City Council is scheduled for November 12, 2013, at 
2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  GWEN PEIRCE, CMC 
MAYOR  CITY CLERK SERVICES MANAGER 
 
 

NOV 12 2013 #2 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
October 29, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee met at 12:30 p.m. and the Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meets at 
12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Deborah L. Applegate. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
None.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Steve Reynolds; Scott Wenz, Cars are Basic; Robin Elander, Cars Are 
Basic; Ethan Shenkman; Melissa Peters, Dos Pueblos Little League “Challengers”; Dr. 
Robert Johns. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOV 12 2013 #2 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1-11) 
 
The titles of the resolution and ordinances related to the Consent Calendar items were 
read. 
 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers House/Hotchkiss to approve the Consent Calendar as 

recommended. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote. 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of October 15, 2013. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

2. Subject: Adoption Of 2013 Fire Code Ordinance (520.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Repealing Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code Chapter 8.04 and Adopting a New Chapter 8.04 Adopting by Reference the 
2013 Edition of the California Fire Code, as Published by the California Building 
Standards Commission, Including Appendix Chapter 4 and Appendices B, BB, C, 
CC and H of That Code, with Local Amendments. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5638. 

3. Subject:  Adoption Of 2013 Building Code Ordinance (640.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code Chapter 22.04, Adopting by Reference the California State Building Codes 
and Other Related Codes; Adopting Local Revisions to Those Codes; and 
Repealing Ordinance Number 5536. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5639. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Cont’d) 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

4. Subject:  September 30, 2013, Investment Report And September 30, 2013, 
Fiscal Agent Report (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept the September 30, 2013, Investment Report; and  
B. Accept the September 30, 2013, Fiscal Agent Report. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation.  (October 29, 2013, report from the 
Finance Director). 

5. Subject:  Request For Designation Of 1130 State Street (Santa Barbara 
Museum Of Art) As A Community Benefit Project (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council find the proposed expansion of the Santa 
Barbara Museum of Art a Community Benefit Project pursuant to Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code (SBMC) §28.85.020.A. and allocate 8,990 square feet of non-
residential floor area to the project from the Community Benefit category. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation.  (October 29, 2013, report from the 
Community Development Director). 

6. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Amending Lease With Richones Inc., 
Doing Business As Chuck's Waterfront Grill, For Office Space At 113 
Harbor Way (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
Lease Amendment Number One to Lease Number 23,328 with Richones Inc., 
Doing Business As Chuck's Waterfront Grill, for Office Space Located at 113 
Harbor Way #145 and #150 at a Monthly Rate of $2,519. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation. (October 29, 2013, report from the 
Waterfront Director; proposed ordinance). 

7. Subject:  Capital Improvement Projects: First Quarter Report For Fiscal 
Year 2014 (230.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a report on the City's Capital 
Improvement Projects for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2014. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation. (October 29, 2013, report from the 
Public Works Director). 
 
 
 
 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

8. Subject:  Increase In Construction Change Order Authority For The Punta 
Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize an increase in the Public Works 
Director's Change Order Authority to approve expenditures for extra work for the 
Punta Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project, Contract No. 24,514, in the 
amount of $160,000, for a total Project expenditure authority of $3,432,037. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,514.3 (October 29, 
2013, report from the Public Works Director).  
 

9. Subject:  Resolution Of Intent To Amend Solid Waste Franchise Agreement 
With MarBorg Industries, Inc. (510.04) 

 Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution Of 
The Council Of The City Of Santa Barbara Declaring Its Intention To Amend The 
Ten-Year Exclusive Franchise For Citywide Solid Waste Collection And Disposal 
Services In The City Granted By The City To MarBorg Industries, Inc., A 
California Corporation, On February 12, 2013 By City Ordinance No. 5608. 

 Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 13-088 (October 29, 
2013, report from the Finance Director).   

 
NOTICES 

10. The City Clerk has on Thursday, October 24, 2013, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

11. Receipt of communication advising of vacancy created on the Community 
Development and Human Services Committee with the resignation of James 
Cook; the vacancy will be part of the next City Advisory Group recruitment. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Finance Committee Chair Dale Francisco reported the Finance Committee met to 
review third quarter Investment and Fiscal Agent Reports, which were approved by 
Council as part of this agenda’s Consent Calendar (Item No. 4). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  Interview And Appointment Of Youth Intern Applicant To The 
Parks And Recreation Commission (570.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A.   Interview applicant Andrew Rodriguez for the position of Youth Intern to 

the Parks and Recreation Commission; and 
B.   Request that Mayor Schneider appoint Andrew Rodriguez to the position 

of Youth Intern to the Parks and Recreation Commission. 
 
Documents: 

- October 29, 2013 report from the Parks and Recreation Director.   
 

Speaker: 
- Staff:  Neighborhood and Outreach Services Supervisor Susan Young. 
- Applicant: Andrew Rodriguez. 

 
Motion: 

 Councilmembers Hotchkiss/Rowse to approve the recommendation. 
Vote: 

 Unanimous voice vote. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
13. Subject: Appeal Of Historic Landmarks Commission Approval Of 1330 

Chapala Street (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Margaret Cafarelli, Agent for 
Urban Developments, LLC, of the application of Peikert + RRM Design Group, 
and uphold the Historic Landmarks Commission's Project Design Approval for 
the proposed mixed-use project consisting of 33 new apartments, 2 new 
commercial units, a new partially below grade parking garage, and alterations to 
the existing at-grade parking lot, incorporating the changes to the site plan and 
Parking Management Plan that have since been proposed by the Applicant. 

Documents: 
 - October 29, 2013, report from Assistant City Administrator/Community 

Development Director. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
  
Public Comment Opened: 
 4:06 p.m. 

 
(Cont’d) 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

13. (Cont’d) 
 

Speakers 
  - Staff:  Project Planner Allison De Busk; Supervising Transportation 

Planner Steve Foley; City Planner Bettie Weiss. 
 - Historic Landmarks Commission:  Commissioners William LaVoie and 

Craig Shallanberger.  
 -  Appellant:  Margaret Cafarelli. 
 - Applicant:  Steven Amerikaner, Esq. representing Metropolitan Theatres 

Corporation; Bruce Corwin, CEO of Metropolitan Theatres. 
 - Members of the Public:  William LaVoie, Michael Nissenson, Dave 

Lombardi, Jeff DeVine, Dawn Mitcham, Michael S. Rassler, Jewish 
Federation of Greater Santa Barbara, Jeremy Thomas, Richard Yates; Hal 
Conklin; Marshall Rose, Scott Wenz, Cars Are Basic; Larry Barels; 
Nelson; Kellam de Forest.  

 
Public Comment Closed: 
 4:37 p.m. 
 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers House/White to deny the appeal, thereby upholding the 

Historic Landmarks Commission’s Project Design Approval, and requesting 
that the Historic Landmarks Commission work with the Applicant on the 
following project elements:  1)  the exit at Sola Street, particularly the grade 
with regard to vehicles going in and out, 2) the location of the residential 
trash enclosure, 3) the Paseo connection from Alma del Pueblo to Sola 
Street, and 4) ensuring that the commercial units are designed for 
commercial use.   

Vote:  
 Unanimous voice vote. 

 
RECESS 
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 5:24 p.m. – 5:36 p.m.  

Mayor Schneider left the meeting at 5:24 p.m. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D) 

Item Removed from Agenda 

City Administrator Armstrong stated that the following item was being removed from the 
Agenda: 

14. Subject:  Citywide Performance Highlights For Fiscal Year 2013 And 
Comparative Indicators Report (170.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a summary of department performance management results and 

highlights for Fiscal Year 2013; and 
B. Receive a report on how the City of Santa Barbara compares with similar 

California communities on key indicators. 
  
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

15. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and  
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 12, 2013, and November 

19, 2013. 
 

Documents: 
- October 29, 2013, report from the Assistant City 

Administrator/Administrative Services Director. 
 

Speakers: 
The following applicants were interviewed: 

  Airport Commission: 
   Paul Bowen 
  Architectural Board of Review: 
   Courtney Jane Miller 
  Arts Advisory Committee: 
   Margie Yahyavi 
  Civil Service Commission:  
   Richard Banks 
  Community Development And Human Services Committee: 
   Alice Villarreal Redit 
   Stephen Faulstich 
   Laura Knight 
  Downtown Parking Committee: 
   William E. (Trey) Pinner 
   Sean Pratt 

(Cont’d) 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

15. (Cont’d) 
 
 Speakers (Cont’d) 
  Fire and Police Commission: 
   Eugene (Gene) Zannon 
  Harbor Commission: 
   Virginia Rubsam 
   Dennis M. Power 
  Historic Landmarks Commission: 
   William (Bill) Mahan 
  Housing Authority Commission: 
   Victor Suhr 
  Measure P Committee 
   Brandon Morse 
  Neighborhood Advisory Council: 
   Alejandro Martinez, Youth Applicant 
   Roberto Funtes, Youth Applicant 
   Gail-Jean Padilla 
  Parks and Recreation Commission: 
   Lesley Wiscomb 
   Nicolas Ferrara 
   Nichol Clark 
  Rental Housing Mediation Task Force 
   Lynn E. Goebel 
   Daniel Herlinger 
 
By consensus, the Council continued the interviews to November 12, 2013, at 4:00 p.m.  
(estimated time). 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
There were no reports. 
 
RECESS 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Rowse recessed the meeting at 6:51 p.m. in order for the Council 
to reconvene in closed session for Item Nos. 16, 17 and 18. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
16. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed. Pending litigation considered is: Sheri 
Markley v. City of Santa Barbara, WCAB case number ADJ7009222. 

Scheduling:   Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report: None anticipated 

  
 Documents: 
  October 29, 2013, report from the Finance Director. 
 
 Time: 
  6:51 p.m. – 6:53 p.m.  Mayor Schneider was absent. 
 
 No report made. 
 
17. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed. Pending litigation considered is: Alvin 
Jerome James v. City of Santa Barbara, WCAB case numbers ADJ7481425. 

Scheduling:   Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report: None anticipated 

 
 Documents: 
  October 29, 2013, report from the Finance Director. 
 
 Time: 
  6:53 p.m. – 6:55 p.m.  Mayor Schneider was absent. 
 
 No report made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10/29/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 

CLOSED SESSIONS (CONT’D) 
 
18. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Santa 
Barbara Patients' Collective Health Cooperative v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., 
USDC Case No. CV10-6534 DDP(RCx). 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
 
Documents: 
 October 29, 2013, report from the City Attorney. 
 
Time: 
 6:55 p.m. – 7:03 p.m.  Mayor Schneider was absent.   
 
No report made. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tempore Rowse adjourned the meeting at 6:51 p.m. 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
   
HELENE SCHNEIDER   
MAYOR    
 
 
______________________________ATTEST:________________________________ 
RANDY ROWSE     DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR PRO TEMPORE    DEPUTY CITY CLERK 



Agenda Item No. 3 
File Code No. 170.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:  Chief’s Staff, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appropriation Of Miscellaneous Grants Funds For Scheduling 

Software Upgrade 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Appropriate $20,000 in the Fiscal Year 2014 Police Department Miscellaneous 

Grants Fund from available reserves for the purchase of an upgrade and service 
package for the InTime Scheduling software; and 

B. Find it in the City’s best interest to waive the bidding process as provided in 
Municipal Code 4.52.080(k) and authorize the General Services Manager to 
issue a purchase order in the amount of $20,000 to InTime for a software 
upgrade and annual maintenance for the following four fiscal years, in 
accordance with approved budgets. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The current Police Department scheduling system (InTime) was purchased in 1998 and 
is now 15 years old.  While the program initially met the needs of the department, 
software upgrades were delayed over the years and the 1998 version no longer 
functions properly.  Since 1998, many advances have been made to scheduling 
software and the newer versions allow staff to check schedules remotely and manage 
overtime requests, and specific public safety needs have been addressed.  Some of the 
current challenges that staff faces are: single user access, with only one person at a 
time able to see the schedule, no reporting capabilities, no employee access, and 
unstable operation in Windows 7 platform. 
 
Over the last year, staff has explored various public safety scheduling software options.  
While there are many scheduling software programs available, public safety scheduling 
presents unique challenges with overtime, vacation, 24/7 operation, as well as 
emergency situations.  Staff explored using the scheduling component of the current 
records management software (Versadex) but found the system to be awkward and 
cumbersome and didn’t meet the department’s scheduling needs.  Additionally, contact 
was made with a Northern California law enforcement agency that uses the Versadex 



Council Agenda Report 
Appropriation Of Miscellaneous Grants Fund For Scheduling Software Upgrade  
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

scheduling software and the feedback they provided was that the product was hard to 
use and didn’t work with Public Safety scheduling needs.  Because of their challenges, 
they recommended using scheduling software specifically designed for public safety.  
Staff also looked at Telestaff by Kronos.  It was found the Kronos based system focuses 
on a broadly based clientele of private sector and government entities and does not 
provide the functions and flexibility necessary for tracking key elements of law 
enforcement scheduling. Thus, it is not conducive to the department’s needs. 
 
Staff then visited Ventura Police Department and viewed the latest version of the InTime 
software.  The Ventura Police Department has used the software for the last seven 
years and is very pleased with the product.  They have been able to efficiently and 
economically provide broad based scheduling for their employees.   
 
The new scheduling software will create scheduling efficiencies department-wide by 
allowing the department to enter and track all of the shifts of various program personnel 
and reduce the amount of time spent by staff manually tracking this information.  In an 
emergency, staff will also be able to enhance the ability to recall police personnel 
efficiently in a short period of time. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are reserve funds available in the Miscellaneous Grants Fund Traffic Offender 
Program for the purchase of the upgrade and annual maintenance costs for the next 
four consecutive fiscal years.  
 
The Traffic Offender Funds come from a fee paid by registered owners who retrieve 
impounded vehicles stemming from those driving motor vehicles with a suspended 
driving privilege or who did not possess a license to drive. The fee originated from an 
Office of Traffic Safety grant awarded in 1997 and that grant required the collection of a 
fee in order to maintain purchases of equipment and staffing following the sunset of the 
grant.  The intent of the ongoing fees was to improve departmental efficiency and traffic 
safety.  The funds have been primarily used for overtime related to directed patrols, DUI 
checkpoints and saturation patrols, as well as equipment purchases. 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: David Whitham, Captain 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No. 4 
File Code No. 520.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Investigative Division, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appropriation Of Asset Forfeiture Funds For The Purchase Of A 

System Upgrade And Digital Forensic Equipment 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Appropriate $8,668 in the Fiscal Year 2014 Police Department Police Asset 

Forfeiture Fund from available reserves for the purchase of an upgrade for the NEC 
fingerprint workstation;  

B. Appropriate $8,632 in the Fiscal Year 2014 Police Department Police Asset 
Forfeiture Fund from available reserves for the purchase of a Micro Systemation 
XRY software for the forensic analysis of mobile device digital data evidence; 

C. Find it in the City’s best interest to waive the formal bid process as authorized in 
Municipal Code Section 4.52.080(k) and authorize the City’s General Services 
Manager to issue a sole source purchase order to NEC for an upgrade to the 
fingerprint workstation; and 

D. Find it in the City’s best interest to waive the formal bid process as authorized in 
Municipal Code Section 4.52.080(k) and authorize the City’s General Services 
Manager to issue a sole source purchase order to Micro Systemation for the XRY 
software application used to perform secure forensic extraction of digital data. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In 1998 the County of Santa Barbara adopted Resolution 98-184 pursuant to California 
SB 720, which authorized the collection of a $1.00 vehicle registration fee for vehicles 
registered to an address within Santa Barbara County.  These funds are used for 
programs that enhance the ability of local law enforcement agencies to secure 
fingerprint identification of individuals who may have been involved in a motor vehicle 
incident while driving under the influence, vehicular manslaughter,  or other crimes while 
operating a motor vehicle.   
 
In May 2000 the Police Department purchased an NEC Tenprint Latent Workstation 
with these funds.  This hardware provided a direct link to the State AFIS System/Cal-ID.  
This system is used as a tool to identify unknown fingerprints on evidence and at crime 
scenes.  The software system was last upgraded in 2004.  The current software 



Council Agenda Report 
Appropriation Of Asset Forfeiture Funds For The Purchase Of A System Upgrade And 
Digital Forensic Equipment  
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

upgrade offered by NEC makes the identification system compatible with search 
capabilities in the nationwide FBI fingerprint database.  This upgrade also includes a 
new computer, high definition monitor, scanner, and printer.  
 
Additionally, there are funds available in the Police Asset Forfeiture Fund that may be 
used to purchase and upgrade forensic analysis equipment.  Currently, the Crime Lab 
has one digital device analysis workstation that is capable of processing one device (i.e. 
cellphone) at a time.  As such, there has been a backlog of cases requiring this type of 
analysis.  In order to improve efficiency of digital data evidence forensic analysis the 
Department is recommending the purchase of the Micro Systemation XRY Complete 
workstation.  This system was selected because it is the only system available that can 
perform three simultaneous examinations, resulting in improved response time during 
crucial investigations.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The purchase of the equipment will be funded from available reserves generated from 
revenues received from the State pursuant to SB 720. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Alex Altavilla, Captain 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No. 5 
File Code No. 330.01 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration, Housing and Human Services, Community 

Development 
 
SUBJECT: Request To Restate And Amend Covenant On Property Located At 

203, 215, And 221 Hitchcock Way (“Rancho Franciscan Apartments”) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve a Restated and Amended Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, 
and Restrictions Imposed on Real Property (“Covenant”) to Comply with Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) Requirements Concerning Age Discrimination and 
Subordination of the Covenant to a New HUD Insured Loan During the Term of the Loan 
and Authorize the Community Development Director to Execute Such Agreements and 
Related Documents, Subject to Approval as to Form by the City Attorney, as Necessary. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In 1988, the owner of the property located at 203, 215 and 221 Hitchcock Way sought 
discretionary development approval for a 111 unit senior housing development.  The 
proposal sought approval for a higher density and substantially less parking than 
permitted by the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  Approval of the project was granted 
conditioned upon the recordation of a restrictive Covenant on the Property which would 
insure that elderly households would occupy the units for the life of the units with 
monthly rents tied to the Area Median Income for a period of thirty (30) years.   
 
The current owner of the Rancho Franciscan Apartments, Rancho Franciscan, L.P., is 
proposing to refinance an existing Wells Fargo loan with a new thirty-five (35) year 
HUD-insured loan.  Under HUD’s policies related to seniors and age-restricted 
multifamily housing, each unit must be occupied by a “head of household” who is 62 
years of age or older and may also be occupied by others not restricted by age.  
 
The 1988 Covenant contains restrictions inconsistent with HUD’s current policies. HUD 
is therefore requiring that, for the term of the HUD insured loan, the Covenant be 
amended to comply with HUD’s policy. The Restated and Amended Covenant will 
incorporate the terms required by the HUD Security Instrument and HUD Regulatory 



Council Agenda Report 
Request to Restate and Amend Covenant on Property Located at 203, 215 and 221 
Hitchcock Way (“Rancho Franciscan Apartments”) 
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

Agreement that result in the subordination of the Covenant to the new HUD-insured 
loan.   
 
The Restated and Amended Covenant will have no impact on any current resident of 
the Property and the Owner will revise its standard lease to notice any future residents 
of the HUD occupancy requirement.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1.  September 18, 2013 letter from The Towbes Group, Inc.  

2.  HUD Memorandum, re: Age Restrictions in FHA Insured 
Housing  

 
PREPARED BY: Deirdre Randolph, Community Development Programs 

Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



Agenda Item No. 6 
File Code No. 560.14 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Facilities Planning and Development, Airport Department 
 
SUBJECT: Avigation And Noise Easement For 7000 Hollister Avenue, Goleta 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute and record a grant deed of 

avigation and noise easement and agreement imposing conditions on real property 
by and between Goleta Hollister, LLC and the City of Santa Barbara; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City Of Santa 
Barbara Accepting an Avigation and Noise Easement Imposing Conditions on Real 
Property known as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 073-030-020 and 073-030-021. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On October 2, 2012, the Planning Commission of the City of Goleta approved construction 
of a new 22 acre mixed-use development at 7000 Hollister Avenue (APN 073-030-020 and 
073-030-021), which is bisected by the boundary of the Santa Barbara County Airport 
Land Use Plan’s “Safety Area 2 – Approach Zone” for Runway 7.  The City of Goleta 
imposed a condition of approval on the project requiring the property owner, Goleta 
Hollister, LLC, to grant the City of Santa Barbara an avigation and noise easement.  The 
avigation and noise easement will provide notice to current and future property owners of 
the effects of airport operations and will establish provisions allowing aircraft using the 
Airport to have the free and unobstructed right of flight in the airspace above the parcel.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Grant Deed of Avigation and Noise Easement 
 
PREPARED BY: Andrew Bermond, AICP, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Karen Ramsdell, Airport Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 















 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ACCEPTING AN AVIGATION AND 
NOISE EASEMENT IMPOSING CONDITIONS ON REAL 
PROPERTY KNOWN AS ASSESSOR’S PARCEL 
NUMBERS 073-030-020 AND 073-030-021 

 
WHEREAS, on October 2, 2012 the City of Goleta approved the development of the 
property at 7000 Hollister Avenue on the condition that the owner enter into an avigation 
and noise easement with the City of Santa Barbara, 
 
WHEREAS, the Santa Barbara County Airport Land-Use Plan identifies the property at 
7000 Hollister Avenue (Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 073-030-020 and 073-030-021) as 
partially within “Safety Area 2 – Approach Zone” for Santa Barbara Airport Runway 7, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Federal Aviation Administration encourages Airport Sponsors to accept 
avigation easements as a means to minimize hazards to aviation;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The City of Santa Barbara hereby accepts the interest in real property 
known as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 073-030-020 and 073-030-021, conveyed by the 
Grant Deed of Avigation and Noise Easement and Agreement Imposing Conditions on 
Real Property dated October 23, 2013, from Goleta Hollister, LLC to the City of Santa 
Barbara, a municipal corporation. 
 
SECTION 2. The City of Santa Barbara hereby consents to the recordation by the City 
Clerk of said easement. 
 



Agenda Item No. 7 
File Code No. 120.02 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Cancellation Of Certain Council Meetings In 2014 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council cancel the regular Council Meetings on the following dates:  January 21, 
February 18, April 1, May 27, July 8, August 19, August 26, September 2, December 2,  
December 23, December 30, 2014. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Each year we review the calendar for the regular City Council Meeting dates.   
 
The Council meeting schedule has been established based on cancelling the Council 
meetings on the Tuesdays following a holiday, and providing for a summer and 
December holiday break.  Council canceled these same Council meetings in 2013.   
 
We are now proposing the cancellation of meetings for the next year. 
 
Using this criteria, the following meetings would be cancelled: 
  

• Tuesday, January 21, 2014 (Tuesday after Martin Luther King, Jr. Holiday); 
• Tuesday, February 18, 2014 (Tuesday after Presidents Day Holiday); 
• Tuesday, April 1, 2014 (Tuesday after Cesar Chavez Day Holiday); 
• Tuesday, May 27, 2014 (Tuesday after Memorial Day Holiday); 
• Tuesday, July 8, 2014 (Tuesday after 4th of July Holiday); 
• Tuesday, August 19, 2014 (Summer Break); 
• Tuesday, August 26, 2014 (Summer Break); 
• Tuesday, September 2, 2014 (Tuesday after Labor Day Holiday); 
• Tuesday, December 2, 2014 (Tuesday after Thanksgiving Holiday);  
• Tuesday, December 23, 2014 (Holiday Break); and  
• Tuesday, December 30, 2014 (Tuesday after Christmas Day Holiday) 

 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Cancellation of Certain Council Meetings in 2014 
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Jennings, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: James L. Armstrong, City Administrator  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



1 

ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING LEASE AMENDMENT 
NUMBER ONE TO LEASE NUMBER 23,328 WITH 
RICHONES INC., DOING BUSINESS AS CHUCK’S 
WATERFRONT GRILL, FOR OFFICE SPACE LOCATED 
AT 113 HARBOR WAY #145 AND #150 AT A MONTHLY 
RATE OF $2,519. 
 

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 521 of the Charter of the City 
of Santa Barbara, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
Lease Amendment Number One dated as of November 29, 2013 with Richones Inc., 
doing business as Chuck’s Waterfront Grill, for office space located at 113 Harbor Way 
#145 and #150, is hereby approved. 

NOV 12 2013 #8 
330.04 



Agenda Item No. 10 
 

File Code No. 120.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  November 12, 2013 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Fiscal Year 2014 First Quarter Interim Financial Statements 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Hear a report from staff on the status of revenues and expenditures in relation to 

budget for the three months ended September 30, 2013;  
B. Accept the Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements for the Three Months 

Ended September 30, 2013; and 
C. Approve the proposed first quarter adjustments to Fiscal Year 2014 

appropriations and estimated revenues as detailed in the attached Schedule of 
Proposed First Quarter Adjustments. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 
Each month, staff presents the interim financial statements (Attachment 1) showing the 
status of revenues and expenditures in relation to budget for each of the City’s Funds. 
Each quarter, the interim financial statements are expanded to include a detailed 
narrative analysis of the General Fund and Enterprise Funds. This narrative analysis is 
included in Attachment 2.  
 
This report covers the first three months of the fiscal year; however, it is premature to 
make any solid projections for the year. Revenues were budgeted conservatively and, 
at this time, it appears that revenues will meet budget by fiscal year-end. Expenditures 
appear to be within expectations at September 30 and any significant variances are 
discussed in Attachment 2. 
 
In addition to the analysis of revenues and expenditures, staff brings forward 
recommended adjustments for City Council approval. These adjustments are the result 
of new information and/or unanticipated events that occurred since the adoption of the 
budget in June 2013.  A listing and description of each proposed adjustment to the 
current year budget is provided in Attachment 3. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2014 First Quarter Review 
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Summary by Fund Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 
for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 

2. Interim Financial Statements for the Three Months Ended 
September 30, 2013 (Narrative Analysis) 

3. Schedule of Proposed First Quarter Adjustments 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 



jhopwood
Text Box
Attachment 1









































Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 (25% of Year Elapsed) 

 

1 

3-Year Variance
YTD Average Prior Yr

Annual YTD YTD YTD Percent Bench- Prior Year To
Budget Budget * Actual Variance Rec'd mark YTD Actual

Sales & Use Tax 21,084,894$   4,029,323$       3,875,853$       (153,470)$    18.38% 19.11% 3,939,426$       -1.6%
Property Tax 25,475,500      91,712               -                          (91,712)         0.00% 0.36% 301,863             -100.0%
UUT 6,975,300        1,797,535         1,772,035         (25,499)         25.40% 25.77% 1,743,350         1.6%
TOT 16,202,000      5,633,435         5,688,255         54,819          35.11% 34.77% 5,063,819         12.3%
Bus License 2,415,000        433,734             471,541             37,807          19.53% 17.96% 449,073             5.0%
Prop Trans Tax 537,900           136,465             188,687             52,221          35.08% 25.37% 172,225             9.6%
    Total Taxes 72,690,594      12,122,204       11,996,371       (125,834)       16.50% 16.68% 11,669,756       2.8%

License & Permits 219,180           54,795               40,461               (14,334)         18.46% 25.00% 38,308               5.6%
Fines & Forfeitures 3,133,967        783,492             823,967             40,475          26.29% 25.00% 800,813             2.9%
Franchise Fee 3,660,300        880,302             896,493             16,191          24.49% 24.05% 864,653             3.7%
Use of Money & Property 1,072,589        268,147             251,987             (16,160)         23.49% 25.00% 368,089             -31.5%
Intergovernmental 623,070           155,768             253,330             97,562          40.66% 25.00% 129,738             95.3%
Fee & Charges 19,698,939      4,924,735         4,854,985         (69,749)         24.65% 25.00% 4,686,938         3.6%
Miscellaneous 9,074,712        2,268,678         2,482,688         214,010        27.36% 25.00% 2,465,670         0.7%
    Total Other 37,482,757      9,335,916         9,603,911         267,995        25.62% 24.91% 9,354,209         2.7%

Total Before Budgeted 
Variances 110,173,351   21,458,121       21,600,282       142,161        21,023,965       

Anticipated Year-End Var 1,200,000        300,000             -                          (300,000)       0.00% 25.00% -                          0.0%

Total Revenues 111,373,351$ 21,758,121$     21,600,282$     (157,839)$    19.39% 19.54% 21,023,965$     

* YTD Budget for Taxes is calculated based on a 3-year average of collections for each revenue source; for all other revenues, YTD Budget is calculated on a
  straight-line basis based on the number of months elapsed.

Summary of Revenues
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013

GENERAL FUND

Current Year Analysis Prior Year Analysis

Current Yr

General Fund Revenues 

The table below summarizes General Fund revenues for the three months ended September 
30, 2013. For interim financial statement purposes, revenues are reported on a cash basis (i.e. 
when the funds are received).  The table below includes the budgeted totals as well as the year-
to-date (YTD) budget, which for tax revenues and franchise fees have been seasonally adjusted 
based on a 3-year average of collections through the same period. Because tax revenues are 
not collected evenly throughout the year, adjusting the year-to-date budget to reflect the unique 
collection pattern for each type of tax allows for a more meaningful comparison to year-to-date 
results. For all other revenues, the Year-to-Date Budget column represents 25% (3 months out 
of the 12 elapsed) of the annual budget column. Unlike tax revenues, these revenues tend to be 
collected more evenly throughout the year. 

 

 

As seen in the table above, total revenues are approximately $158,000 below the budget 
through September 30, 2013.  Major revenues and significant variances are discussed below. 

 

 

Attachment 2 



Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 (25% of Year Elapsed) 

 

2 

Sales Taxes 

Sales tax revenue through September 30, 2013 was $153,470 below the YTD budget, though 
only $63,000 below last year’s returns through three months. While representing the first 
quarterly sales tax payments on a cash basis, the revenues received through September 30, 
2013 provide information for the growth in sales tax revenues earned in the last quarter of fiscal 
year 2013.  Sales taxes earned between July 1, 2013 and September 30, 2013 are received 
between October and December.    

Property Tax 
 
As of September 30, the City has yet to receive any property tax payments, since the first 
payment for property tax is received in October. In the prior year, the City received $301,863 in 
one-time revenues for the City’s share of property tax increment funds previously held by the 
former City Redevelopment Agency that were paid to the County and allocated to all taxing 
agencies within the City. Based on property tax estimates provided by the County, revenue 
growth for Fiscal Year 2014 is trending higher than expected based on information provided by 
the County of Santa Barbara relative to increases in assessed value.  
 
Transient Occupancy Tax 

TOT revenue was $54,819 above the year-to-date budget at September 30, 2013 on a cash 
basis, as shown on the table on the previous page. A combination of warm, sunny weather and 
an increase in available beds have led to strong 12.3% growth in the first part of the year.  

Intergovernmental 

Intergovernmental revenue was approximately $98,000 above the year-to-date budget. The 
largest component of intergovernmental revenue is mutual aid reimbursements received by the 
Fire Department for providing assistance to other agencies. The City is reimbursed for the 
actual costs of providing assistance plus an overhead factor.  The Fire Department has received 
$180,000 during the first three months of the year, over $117,000 more than the first three 
months last year. In addition, the Library has brought in over $32,000 in new grant revenue.  
 
Miscellaneous 

Miscellaneous revenue was $214,010 above the year-to-date budget.  This is largely attributed 
to both an increase in paid administrative citation payments and one-time revenues that 
occurred at the start of the year. The table below describes the largest components of 
miscellaneous revenue, which includes overhead cost recovery, transfers in, donations, 
administrative citations. Other revenue includes administrative citations, auction revenue, City 
TV revenue, sale of property, insurance rebates, refunds, and other miscellaneous revenue. 



Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 (25% of Year Elapsed) 

 

3 

 

Fees & Service Charges 
 
Overall, fees and service charges are about $70,000 under the YTD budget. The table below 
provides more details on fees and service charges by department. The more significant 1st 
quarter variances are also discussed. 
 

 
 
 
Parks & Recreation fees are approximately $97,215 above the year-to-date budget.  Although 
charges tend to be seasonal, as parks & recreation programs tend to get higher participation in 
the summer, revenues are performing well—over $26,000 better off when compared to the first 
quarter last year.      
 
Public Safety fees and charges are approximately $49,000 under the year-to-date budget, and 
down approximately $11,000 over the prior year.  Several revenues are down slightly relative to 
the budget, including parking citation revenues and dismissal fees in the Police Department, 
largely as a result of decreased staffing in the parking citation section. 
 

Miscellaneous Revenue
General Fund

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013

Percent
Annual YTD YTD Budget Received Prior Year Prior Year Percent

Type of Misc. Revenue Budget Budget Actual Variance YTD YTD Variance Variance

Overhead Allocation 6,292,740           1,573,185$       1,573,185          -$                   25.0% 1,460,463          112,722$       7.7%
Transfers In 1,437,449           359,362           403,353             43,991            28.1% 306,906             96,448           31.4%
Donations 269,500               67,375             9,072                  (58,303)           3.4% 16,123                (7,051)           -43.7%
Other Revenue 1,075,023           268,756           497,077             228,321          46.2% 682,178             (185,101)        -27.1%

Total 9,074,712$      2,268,678$       2,482,688$     214,010$        27.4% 2,465,670$     17,018$         0.7%

Fees and Service Charges
General Fund

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013

Percent
Annual YTD YTD Budget Received Prior Year Prior Year Percent

Department Budget Budget Actual Variance YTD YTD Variance Variance

Finance 968,881$         242,220$         236,909$        (5,311)$           24.5% 224,083$        12,826$         5.7%
Community Development 4,485,375        1,121,344        1,056,285       (65,059)           23.5% 1,020,092       36,193           3.5%
Parks & Recreation 4,186,203        1,046,551        1,143,765       97,215            27.3% 1,117,678       26,088           2.3%
Public Safety 1,155,049        288,762           239,367          (49,396)           20.7% 250,434          (11,068)          -4.4%
Public Works 841,426           210,357           251,464          41,107            29.9% 238,822          12,642           5.3%
Library 767,839           191,960           16,642            (175,318)         2.2% 11,454            5,188            45.3%
Inter-Fund Charges 7,292,738        1,823,185        1,910,128       86,944            26.2% 1,799,362       110,766         6.2%
Other Charges 1,428              357                 425                68                  29.8% 25,013            (24,588)          -98.3%

Total 19,698,939$     4,924,735$       4,854,985$     (69,749)$         24.6% 4,686,938$     168,048$       3.6%



Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 (25% of Year Elapsed) 

 

4 

Library fees and charges are approximately $175,318 under the year-to-date budget.  As 
expected, each year the County of Santa Barbara makes biannual payments for the operation of 
the county libraries, of which the City records an administrative fee.  These payments do not 
typically occur until the 3rd or 4th quarters of the year.  
 
Inter-Fund charges are $86,944 above the budget.  These charges represent reimbursements 
from other City funds to the General Fund for direct departmental services provided.  One 
example is reimbursement revenue provided to the Fire Department from the Airport for 
required fire coverage at the Airport.     
 
Anticipated Year-End Variances and Budgeted Savings from Concessions 
 
It is important to note that the table on page 1 includes $1,200,000 for anticipated year-end 
budget variances.  The $1.2 million is roughly equal to 1.1% of budgeted operating expenditures 
in the General Fund and, although budgeted as a revenue, represents staff’s estimate of the 
favorable expenditure variances (i.e. expenditures under budget) for the year. As is the case 
each year, the Anticipated Year-End Variance budgeted will not reflect any actual revenues, but 
rather favorable variances in expenditures by year-end.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 (25% of Year Elapsed) 

 

5 

General Fund Expenditures 

The table below summarizes the General Fund budget and year-to-date expenditures through 
September 30, 2013. The “Adjusted Annual Budget” column represents the adopted budget, 
appropriation carryovers from the prior year, and any supplemental appropriations approved by 
Council in the current year. 

As shown above, a year-to-date budget (labeled “YTD Budget”) column is included.  This 
column has been developed based on a 3-year average of expenditures in order to adjust for 
the seasonal nature of certain expenditures, such as debt service and summer recreation 
programs.  The table includes actual expenditures without encumbrances, and separate column 
for the variance after considering encumbrances.  Inclusion of encumbrances can significantly 
distort the analysis of budgeted and actual expenditures during the year. Outstanding 
encumbrances include certain appropriations that were carried forward from prior year and 
contracts or blanket purchase orders that have been executed in the current year but are 
expected to be used throughout the year.  The following discussion and analysis does not 
include the impact of encumbrances.  

The year-to-date budget of $30.5 million at September 30, compared to actual expenditures of 
$30 million, resulted in a variance of approximately $528,000.  Significant variances in 
departments are discussed below.   

City Administrator expenditures are slightly over the YTD budget by approximately $39,000.  
This variance is due to 98% of the non-contractual services budget being expended by 

YTD
Adjusted Variance
Annual YTD YTD Without Encum-

Department Budget Budget Actual Encumbrance brance $ %

Mayor & Council 741,223$            193,533$          184,518$         9,015$              306$              8,709$              1.2%
City Attorney 2,104,254           596,766            561,787           34,979              8,325             26,654              1.3%
City Administrator 2,115,515           566,112            605,214           (39,102)            46,641           (85,743)            -4.1%
Administrative Svs. 2,202,228           536,463            456,686           79,777              217,343         (137,566)          -6.2%
Finance 4,837,299           1,228,190         1,147,739        80,451              286,838         (206,387)          -4.3%
Police 37,449,263         10,122,536       10,155,216      (32,680)            329,768         (362,448)          -1.0%
Fire 22,319,166         6,070,813         6,380,726        (309,913)          78,716           (388,629)          -1.7%
Public Works 7,471,449           1,910,450         1,835,317        75,133              293,507         (218,374)          -2.9%
Parks & Recreation 14,261,731         4,077,429         4,042,933        34,496              269,651         (235,155)          -1.6%
Library 4,625,899           1,119,468         1,150,722        (31,254)            18,481           (49,735)            -1.1%
Community Development 9,672,960           2,716,167         2,188,932        527,235            56,950           470,285            4.9%
Community Promotion 3,858,684           1,370,990         1,271,395        99,595              -                     99,595              2.6%
    Total 111,659,671$     30,508,917$     29,981,185$    527,732$          1,606,526$    (1,078,794)$     -1.0%

% of annual budget 27.3% 26.9% 0.5% 1.4% -1.0%

Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Variance With Encumb

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES
GENERAL FUND

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013
YTD



Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 (25% of Year Elapsed) 

 

6 

September 30 to fund the South Coast Task Force on Youth Gangs Memorandum of 
Understanding for Fiscal Year 2014.  

Fire Department expenditures are above the YTD budget by approximately $310,000. This 
variance is due to higher than anticipated mutual aid expenditures during the high fire season in 
July through September 2013. Mutual aid expenditures relate to the cost of providing assistance 
to other locations throughout the state.  As of September 30, mutual aid expenditures amounted 
to $529,000 in comparison to budgeted mutual aid expenditures of $350,000.  However, the Fire 
Department receives mutual aid reimbursement revenues, originally budgeted at $400,000 and 
currently projected at $703,000.  Mutual aid revenues are projected to exceed expenditures by 
$175,000 for all mutual aid activities through September 30, 2013. As there is the possibility of 
additional mutual aid activities by year-end, staff will be closely monitoring mutual aid revenues 
and expenditures and will request an adjustment at year-end to record the total revenues and 
appropriations for all fiscal year 2014 mutual aid activities.  

Community Development expenditures are below YTD budget by approximately $527,000.  
This variance is largely attributed to a timing difference in payments of over $335,000 for the 
City Arts Advisory Program.  In prior years, the first quarter payment for the Santa Barbara 
County Arts Commission was made in September; however, for Fiscal Year 2014, this payment 
was made in October 2013.  



Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 (25% of Year Elapsed) 

 

7 

Enterprise Fund Revenues and Expenses 

Unlike the General Fund, which relies primarily on taxes to subsidize programs and services, 
Enterprise Fund operations are financed primarily from user fees and other non-tax revenues. 
The table below summarizes Enterprise Fund revenues and expenses through September 30, 
2013, with a comparison to the current year budget and prior year expenses through the first 
three months. Note that the “YTD Budget” column has been calculated based on a 3-year 
average collection rate through September 30th. This rate, which is shown as a percentage in 
the “3 Year Average” column, has been applied to the annual budget amount to arrive at the 
Year-to-Date Budget. This approach is used in recognition that enterprise fund revenues and 
certain expenses are seasonally affected and are not necessarily received or incurred evenly 

 
Annual YTD YTD YTD YTD 3 Year YTD %
Budget Budget * Actual Variance Percent Average Actual Variance

Water Fund

Revenues 36,524,435$      10,493,470$     10,572,165$    78,695$           28.9% 28.7% 10,819,783$    -2.3%

Expenses 46,175,840        12,541,358       8,509,699        4,031,659        18.4% 27.2% 8,110,596        4.9%

Wastewater Fund

Revenues 17,907,479        4,770,552         4,809,209        38,657             26.9% 26.6% 4,567,970        5.3%

Expenses 19,274,955        4,250,128         3,622,224        627,904           18.8% 22.1% 3,391,274        6.8%

Downtown Parking Fund

Revenues 7,420,709          1,773,549         1,920,304        146,755           25.9% 23.9% 1,872,514        2.6%

Expenses 8,595,305          2,059,435         2,015,121        44,314             23.4% 24.0% 1,814,119        11.1%

Airport Fund

Revenues 15,751,093        3,797,589         3,753,655        (43,934)            23.8% 24.1% 3,639,346        3.1%

Expenses 16,455,374        3,323,986         3,339,464        (15,478)            20.3% 20.2% 2,933,151        13.9%

Golf Fund

Revenues 2,081,059          573,540           582,088          8,548              28.0% 27.6% 483,501           20.4%

Expenses 2,049,523          656,257           636,769          19,488             31.1% 32.0% 633,671           0.5%

Waterfront Fund

Revenues 12,445,067        3,553,067         3,762,265        209,198           30.2% 28.6% 3,648,429        3.1%

Expenses 13,578,796        3,203,238         3,109,225        94,013             22.9% 23.6% 3,082,724        0.9%

* The YTD Budget column has been calculated based on a 3-year average of collections for revenues, and of payments made for expenses
through September 30, which has been applied to the annual budget.

SUMMARY OF REVENUES & EXPENSES
For The Three Months Ended September 30, 2013

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Current Year Analysis Prior Year Analysis



Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements 
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 (25% of Year Elapsed) 

 

8 

throughout the year.     

The expenses shown in the preceding table do not include outstanding encumbrances at 
September 30, 2013. Inclusion of encumbrances can significantly distort the analysis of 
budgeted and actual expenditures after nine months. Outstanding encumbrances include 
appropriations that were carried forward from prior year as part of the appropriation carryovers 
and contracts or blanket purchase orders that have been added in the current year but are 
expected to be spent over the coming months.   

The following discussion highlights some of the more significant revenue and expense 
variances of the enterprise funds, in relation to budget or prior year. 

Water Fund 

Water Fund revenues are slightly above the year-to-date budget as of September 30.  
Expenses for the Water Fund are below the YTD budget by approximately $4,031,000.  The 
variance is largely due almost $1 million in temporary appropriations carryovers that were 
subsequently reversed in October 2014 and a timing difference in debt service transfers in 
Fiscal Year 2014. In the prior year two years, approximately 80% of the debt service transfers 
occurred in the first quarter amounting to over $1,400,000 of the $1,800,000 budget each year. 
In Fiscal Year 2014, only 1% of the debt service transfers occurred in the first quarter amounting 
to only $16,000 of the $1,800,000 budget.  

Wastewater Fund 

Wastewater Fund revenues are slightly above the YTD budget at September 30. Wastewater 
Fund expenses are approximately $628,000 below the YTD budget largely due to no principal 
and interest debt payments occurring in the first quarter.     

Airport Fund 

Airport Fund revenues are below the YTD budget at September 30 by approximately $44,000 
due to two property vacancies and reduced parking revenue resulting from decreased 
passenger traffic during the first quarter. Expenses for the Airport Fund are slightly above the 
YTD budget at September 30.   

 

 
 



Attachment 3
City of Santa Barbara

Interim Financial Statements for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2013
Proposed Budget Adjustments

Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

GENERAL FUND

Library
Grant - Santa Barbara Foundation -$                 2,528$            2,528$             
Scanning Equipment for Visually Impaired 2,528                -                  (2,528)              

Subsequent to the development of the current year budget, the Library Department
received a grant in the amount of $2,528 from the Santa Barbara Foundation to
purchase equipment to enable those who are visually impaired to scan and read
materials at the Central Library. These recommended entries increase estimated
revenues and appropriations for the grant and purchase of equipment.

Total General Fund 2,528$              -$                (2,528)$            

CITY ALLOCATION FUND

Transfer Fund Balance to Facilities Capital Fund 280,449            -                  (280,449)          

The City Allocation Fund has been used to account for central costs, such as
utilities and facilities maintenance, of departments in both City Hall and 630 Garden
Street. Beginning with Fiscal Year 2014, Council approved the elimination of the
use of this fund. Therefore, this recommended entry will transfer the remaining
fund balance in the City Allocation Fund to the Facilities Capital Fund to be in line
with the original purpose of the fund. 

Total City Allocation Fund 280,449$          -$                (280,449)$        

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

County Library Fund (181)
City of Solvang Additional Funding -$                 14,000$          14,000$           
Staffing - Solvang Library 14,000              -                  (14,000)            

In June 2013, the City of Solvang approved a contribution of $88,000 to the
Solvang Library for Fiscal Year 2014 rather than the $74,000 budgeted. This
additional City of Solvang funding will be used to increase hourly staffing at the
Solvang Library. These recommended entries will increase estimated revenues
and appropriations for the City of Solvang increased contribution and staffing costs.

Total County Library Fund 14,000$            14,000$          -$                 

Streets Fund (331)
Adjust Capital Project Budgets:

Increase Revenues for Highway 225 (Cliff Drive) Project - Caltrans Contract -$                 819,000$        819,000$         
Increase Appropriations for Highway 225 Project - Maintenance & Operation 819,000            -                  (819,000)          

The City of Santa Barbara entered into a contractual agreement with Caltrans for
$819,000 at the time of relinquishment of Highway 225 to the City of Santa
Barbara. The funds will be used for various maintenance and operational needs on
the former State Route 225, including drainage maintenance. These recommended
entries increase estimated revenues and appropriations for the Caltrans contract
and expenditures of the project.

1



Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (cont.)

Streets Fund (331) - cont.
Adjust Capital Project Budgets:

Transfer Available Appropriations from Drainage Improvement Project (50,000)            -                  50,000             
Transfer Appropriations to Mission Creek Flood Control Project 50,000              -                  (50,000)            

Additional unanticipated costs of $50,000 have been identified for the Mission
Creek Flood Control Project. Appropriations are available in the Drainage
Improvements project which is used for general drainage improvement project
needs. Therefore, these recommended entries with transfer available
appropriations from the Drainage Improvements project to the Mission Creek Flood
Control project.

Adjust Capital Project Budgets:
Increase Appropriations for Chapala Bridge Replacement Project 150,000            -                  (150,000)          
Increase Appropriations for Mason Street Bridge Replacement Project 50,000              -                  (50,000)            
Increase Appropriations for Hayley/De La Vina at Mission Creek Project 107,427            -                  (107,427)          

During Fiscal Year 2013, the City of Santa Barbara sold property at 136 W. Haley
Street for $334,636. The proceeds from this sale were intended to be used to fund
future projects for the Streets Fund and were placed in a special reserve. These
recommended entries will use $307,427 of the funds in the sale of surplus property
reserve to cover the City's matching grant costs for these projects that are currently
in various phases of design and construction. 

Total Streets Fund 1,126,427$       819,000$        (307,427)$        

Streets Grant Capital Fund (333)
New Quinientos Street Bridge Replacement Project - Caltrans Grant 812,500$          812,500$        -$                 

Subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the Federal Highway
Administration approved reimbursable design work for the Quinientos Street Bridge
Replacement project. The participating costs for this project are reimbursable at
100%. These recommended entries increase estimated revenues and
appropriations for this new project.

Total Streets Grant Capital Fund 812,500$          812,500$        -$                 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Facilities Capital Fund (515)
Transfer Fund Balance from City Hall Allocation Fund -$                 280,449$        280,449$         

The City Allocation Fund has been used to account for central costs, such as
utilities and facilities maintenance, of departments in both City Hall and 630 Garden
Street. Beginning with Fiscal Year 2014, Council approved the elimination of the
use of this fund. Therefore, this recommended entry will transfer the remaining
fund balance in the City Allocation Fund to the Facilities Capital Fund to be in line
with the original purpose of the fund. 

2



Increase
Increase (Decrease) in Addition to

(Decrease) in Estimated (Use of)
Appropriations Revenues Reserves

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (cont.)

Facilities Capital Fund (515) - cont.
Adjust Capital Project Budgets:

Decrease Appropriations for County Library Improvements Project (40,000)$          -$                40,000$           
Decrease Appropriations for City Hall Improvements (65,000)            -                  65,000             
Increase Appropriations for Community Development Carpet & Paint Project 171,000            -                  (171,000)          
Increase Appropriations for Miscellaneous Facilities Renewal Project 53,000              -                  (53,000)            
Increase Appropriations for Miscellaneous Staff Projects 43,000              -                  (43,000)            
Decrease Appropriations for Police Building Improvements Project (149,000)          -                  149,000           
Decrease Appropriations for Repave Parking Lots Project (13,000)            -                  13,000             

Since Council's adoption of the detailed project plan for the Facilities Capital Fund
in June 2013, staff has identified changes to various projects needs for Fiscal Year
2014. These recommended entries adjust appropriation budgets for seven
identified projects for the following reasons:                                              

a) County Library Improvements decrease - The sliding door will be repaired rather
than replaced    

b) City Hall Improvements decrease - Project to replace cast iron waste lines below
second floor restrooms at City Hall will be delayed to address other project needs

c) Community Development Carpet & Paint increase - Project scope will include
replacement of old modular furniture in poor condition. There are significant cost
savings in replacing the furniture at the same time as replacing the carpeting    

d) Misc. Facilities Renewal increase - Provides more flexibility with small projects
completed using contractors    

e) Misc. Staff Projects increase - Provides more flexibility with small projects
completed by Facilities staff    

f) Police Building Improvements decrease - Project scope will include design of the
replacement of all main HVAC systems; however, the replacement of the boiler
system will be delayed until the larger HVAC construction project    

g) Repave Parking Lots decrease - Spot repairs to asphalt areas near the refueling
station will be delayed until the refueling station relocation to the Annex Yard
project    

Total Facilities Capital Fund -$                 280,449$        280,449$         

3



Agenda Item No. 11 
File Code No. 640.09 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Emergency Shelter Zoning Discussion 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council provide direction to Community Development staff related to the 
implementation of Senate Bill 2 (SB2) (as enacted in 2007 as Government Code § 
65583) requiring that every municipality identify zoning intended to encourage and 
facilitate “emergency shelters.” 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
In 2007, the State Legislature enacted SB2 in an effort to strengthen the State Housing 
Element Law to require municipal zoning that encourages and facilitates emergency 
shelters, and limits the ability of a city or county to deny land use permits necessary to 
open an emergency shelter or a transitional and supportive housing project (see 
Attachment 1).  To comply with this mandate, the City’s 2011 Housing Element includes 
an Implementation Action that the Council consider amending  the City’s Commercial 
Manufacturing (C-M) zoning district to allow emergency shelters without a conditional use 
permit within one year of adoption of the Housing Element. 
 
After reviewing the requirements of SB2 in more detail with the City Attorney’s office, 
Community Development Staff believes that the City’s Zoning Ordinance complies with 
SB2 because it provides multiple hotel zones where overnight shelter (with no or minimal 
“supportive services”) for the homeless could be developed without the need for a 
conditional use permit.  As a result, Staff believes two options are available to the City 
Council:  
1. Confirm to the State Housing and Community Development staff that emergency 
shelters (with minimal supportive services) can be developed by right within existing City 
hotel zones where overnight accommodations are currently allowed; or  
2. Enact a new City ordinance to limit the development of emergency shelters (with 
minimal supportive services) by right to a specific zone or zones of the City. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Emergency Shelter Zoning Discussion 
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
SB2 (Govt. Code § 65583) was enacted in 2007, requiring all cities and counties in 
California to provide for at least one zoning district where emergency shelters are 
allowed by right, i.e., without a conditional use permit or other discretionary land use 
approval required.  The jurisdiction’s housing element must identify the zoning district 
and demonstrate that there is sufficient land capacity to accommodate the locality’s 
need for emergency shelters and to allow for at least one year-round emergency shelter 
facility.  SB2 also prohibits denial of emergency shelter, transitional housing, or 
supportive housing proposals if this type of housing is needed and consistent with local 
zoning and development standards. 
 
SB2 defines Emergency Shelter as “housing with minimal supportive services for 
homeless persons that is limited to occupancy of six months or less by a homeless 
person.  No individual or household may be denied emergency shelter because of an 
inability to pay.” 
 
To carry out the SB2 requirement of providing a zone for possible emergency shelters 
by right, SB2 allows cities and counties the following options: 
 Amend an existing zoning district; 
 Create a new zoning district;  
 Establish an overlay zone for existing districts; or 
 Explain how an existing zoning ordinance allows for the development of an 

emergency shelter without the need to obtain any discretionary land use permit. 

Regardless of which option is selected, the zoning district must have sufficient 
opportunities for emergency shelters, and be compatible and suitable for that use.  As 
such, consideration should be given to other uses that are permitted within the zone, 
and whether the zone is suitable for residential or emergency shelters.  Once a zoning 
district is created with sufficient capacity to encourage and facilitate emergency 
shelters, local municipalities may then identify additional zones for the development of 
emergency shelters which require a conditional use permit.   
 
Development and management standards for the operation of emergency shelters, 
(such as the number of beds, length of stay, parking, lighting, etc.), may be applied by 
such an ordinance; however, it must also be demonstrated that these standards (as well 
as any related permit processing procedure) facilitate the possible creation of 
emergency shelters.  In other words, these standards must be designed to encourage 
and facilitate the development of emergency shelters, and not unduly impede shelter 
development or shelter operations. 
 Development standards must be objective and must encourage and facilitate the 

approval of emergency shelters. 
 The same development standards which apply to residential or commercial uses in 

the identified zone must also be applied to emergency shelters. 



Council Agenda Report 
Emergency Shelter Zoning Discussion 
November 12, 2013 
Page 3 

 

 Development standards must not render emergency shelters infeasible, and shall 
only address the use as an emergency shelter, not the perceived characteristics of 
potential occupants of the shelter. 

Cities and counties without an existing zone which permits at least one year-round 
emergency shelter must include a program in their housing element to identify a zone or 
zones and amend their zoning code to allow emergency shelters as a permitted use and 
do so within one year of adoption of the jurisdiction’s housing element.  The only 
exceptions to this requirement are where it can be demonstrated that the homeless 
shelter needs (based on the housing element analysis) can be accommodated in 
existing shelters; or where the jurisdiction meets all of its shelter needs through a multi-
jurisdictional emergency shelter agreement. 
 
It should be noted that, if an adopted housing element included a program to address 
the requirements of SB2 for emergency shelters, and the required timeframe (one year 
from adoption of the housing element) has lapsed, the Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) will not find future housing elements in compliance with 
the State Planning and Zoning Law until the required rezoning is complete and the 
element is duly amended to reflect that rezoning. 
 
Multi-Jurisdictional Agreements: 
 
SB2 allows jurisdictions to satisfy all or some of their homeless shelter needs by 
entering into an agreement with up to two other adjacent communities.  The multi-
jurisdictional agreement must obligate the participating jurisdictions to construct at least 
one year-round shelter within two years of the beginning of the planning period.  The 
agreement must allocate a portion of the new shelter capacity to each jurisdiction as a 
credit toward their identified emergency shelter need of that community.  Additionally, 
the housing element for each participating jurisdiction must describe the following: 
 How the capacity of the emergency shelter was allocated; 
 How the joint emergency shelter facility will address the jurisdiction’s need; 
 The contribution for both the development and operation and management of the 

shelter;  
 The amount and source of funding to be contributed to the shelter; and 
 How the aggregate capacity claimed by each participating jurisdiction in their 

housing element does not exceed the actual capacity of the shelter. 

If a local government can demonstrate that their emergency shelter needs are being 
met through existing facilities, the jurisdiction is allowed to comply with SB2 by 
identifying a zone(s) where new emergency shelters are permitted with the granting of a 
conditional use permit. 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Emergency Shelter Zoning Discussion 
November 12, 2013 
Page 4 

 

Other Jurisdictions: 
 
As indicated above, cities and counties are allowed to pursue the following options: 1) 
amend an existing zoning district, 2) create a new zoning district, 3) establish an overlay 
zone for existing districts, or 4) enter into a multi-jurisdictional agreement in order to 
comply with the requirements of SB2.  Staff research of other South Coast jurisdictions 
indicates that the majority of these localities propose to amend an existing zone or 
zones to comply with SB2.  This includes the cities of Buellton, Carpinteria, Guadalupe, 
Santa Maria, and Solvang.  The city of Lompoc will apply an overlay zone to several 
existing zones.  The city of Goleta and county of Santa Barbara currently allow 
emergency shelters by right in at least one zone.  None of the above listed cities elected 
to enter into a multi-jurisdictional agreement (see Attachment 2) 
 
City’s Existing Compliance with SB2: 
 
As required by State law, the City’s 2011 Housing Element includes an analysis 
regarding the City’s emergency shelter need for the homeless.  The analysis concluded 
that, while the City currently has 1,050 shelter beds/rooms/units available during the 
months of December-March and 950 beds/rooms/units during April-November, this 
number does not completely meet the City’s need for homeless shelter, which is 
estimated to be approximately 1,355 homeless individuals (see Attachment 3). 
 
To comply with state Housing Element Law, the City’s 2011 Housing Element identified 
the C-M zone as a potentially suitable zoning district to allow emergency shelters as an 
expressly permitted use without the need for a conditional use permit or other 
discretionary City action.  Implementation Action H4.1 was included indicating that the 
Council would consider amending the C-M zone to allow emergency shelters as a 
permitted use within one year of adoption of the housing element (see Attachment 4). 
 
The C-M zone was determined by City Staff to have sufficient capacity to support the 
development of at least one additional year-round emergency shelter within Santa 
Barbara.  Approximately 123 vacant or underutilized parcels totaling 30 acres of 
available land zoned C-M were identified as part of the “Available Land Inventory 
Summary” of the Housing Element.  The C-M zone allows the development of 
residential uses, including mixed use development and other related uses that 
encourage emergency shelters, making this zone potentially suitable and appropriate to 
meet the City’s identified unmet need for emergency shelter beds. 
 
However, under the City Zoning Ordinance, facilities that provide overnight shelter to 
the homeless are also considered short-term, transitional accommodations similar to a 
hotel use.  As a result, staff, in consultation with the City Attorney’s office, has 
determined that the City currently appears to meet the requirements of SB2 because 
multiple zones exist which allow the development of hotels that are, in effect, “overnight 
accommodation” uses similar to overnight emergency shelter for the homeless.  In fact, 
a number of emergency shelter facilities are presently operating in City Hotel zones 



Council Agenda Report 
Emergency Shelter Zoning Discussion 
November 12, 2013 
Page 5 

 

without having obtained a conditional use permit.  These facilities provide beds for 
individuals in need of shelter, including families with children.   
 
The two primary emergency shelters in the City are Casa Esperanza Homeless Shelter 
(zoned M-1/C-2/S-D-3) and the Santa Barbara Rescue Mission (zoned OM-1/S-D-3).  
These facilities are currently permitted with a conditional use permit and located in the 
Coastal Zone.  Because these shelters also provide multi-faceted programs and 
“supportive services” they are considered “quasi-public facilities”, therefore a conditional 
use permit was required pursuant to Municipal Code Section 28.94.030(W).  It is staff’s 
position that Casa Esperanza and the Rescue Mission must continue to operate under a 
conditional use permit based on the broad scope of services and programs being 
offered in combination with their emergency shelter beds.  In addition, while their 
respective zones allow the development of overnight shelter, the M-1 and OM-1 zones 
discourage residential uses and therefore could be considered inconsistent with the use 
absent the requirement of a CUP. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council consider the following options to satisfy the 
requirements of SB2 related to emergency shelter zoning: 
 
Option 1:  Advise the State Department of Housing and Community Development that 
emergency shelters (which only have minimal supportive services) are allowed within 
the City without a conditional use permit or other discretionary land use in all zones that 
currently permit overnight accommodations.  Essentially, this would be a status quo 
option. These zones include the R-4 (Hotel-Motel-Multiple Residential), and commercial 
zones where hotel use is allowed, including HRC1 & HRC-2 (Hotel and Related 
Commerce), R-H (Resort-Residential Hotel), C-P (Restricted Commercial), C-L (Limited 
Commercial Zone), C-1 (Limited Commercial), C-2 (Commercial), C-M (Commercial 
Manufacturing), OC (Ocean-Oriented Commercial), M-1 (Light Manufacturing) and OM-
1 (Ocean-Oriented Light Manufacturing) zones. 
 
Option 2:  Advise the State Department of Housing and Community Development that 
the City will consider a City zoning ordinance to limit the development of emergency 
shelters with minimal supportive services to one specific zone of the City.  Staff believes 
that the C-M zone, which allows residential uses and has sufficient land capacity to 
accommodate the City’s need for emergency shelters including at least one year-round 
emergency shelter, is an appropriate and suitable zone if this option is pursued.   
 
Regardless of which option Council determines is the most appropriate to carry out 
SB2, it may be advisable for the Zoning Ordinance to be amended to include the 
definition of “Emergency Shelters” as defined by the Health and Safety Code, as well as 
to clarify that emergency shelters with extended supportive services will not meet the 
City’s  definition of an “overnight accommodation” or “hotel” type use.  The Health and 
Safety Code Section 50801(e) defines emergency shelters as housing with minimal 
supportive services for the homeless. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Emergency Shelter Zoning Discussion 
November 12, 2013 
Page 6 

 

Next Steps: 
 
Following Council’s direction regarding compliance with SB2, amendments to the 
Municipal Code will be prepared and presented to the Ordinance Committee for review 
and refinement.  A subsequent public hearing at the Planning Commission for review of 
the zoning amendments and recommendations to Council will follow and, ultimately, the 
ordinance amendments will be forwarded to the City Council for possible introduction 
and adoption. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The Zoning Ordinance Amendments to the Commercial Manufacturing (C-M) Zone 
identifying emergency shelters as a permitted use do not require allocation of funds. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. HCD Briefing Paper Regarding SB2 (Excerpt) 
 2. Compliance with SB 2-South Coast Jurisdictions Table 
 3. Housing Element Regarding Homeless Need (Excerpt) 
 4. Housing Element Implementation Action H4.1 (Excerpt) 
 
PREPARED BY: Irma Unzueta, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator/Community 

Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



 

 

Compliance with SB2 – Emergency Shelter Zoning  

Jurisdiction Existing Zone New Zone Amend Zone Overlay Zone Multi-
Jurisdictional 

City of Buellton   Amend CR Zone   

City of Carpinteria   Amend M-RP Zone   

City of Goleta Allowed in C-3, M-1 
& M-RP Zones 

    

City of Guadalupe   Amend R-3 Zone   

 

City of Lompoc 

   Apply Overlay Zone 
to C-2, C-O or C-C 
Zones 

 

City of Santa Maria   Amend CPO Zone   

City of Solvang   Amend DR-20 Zone   

County of Santa Barbara Allowed in C-3 Zone     

 

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



Excerpted from 2011 Housing Element Goals, Policies and 
Implementation Chapter (pages 94 and 95) 

 

H4. Homeless Shelters and Services. Sup p or t  o t her  agencies and  nonp ro f it  
o rgan izat ions in  t heir  ef f o r t s t o  p rovid e shelt er  and  services f o r  t he 
hom eless. 

 
Possible Implementation Actions to be Considered 

H4.1 Year -Round  Hom eless Sh elt er . Wit h in  one year  o f  ad op t ion  o f  t h e 
2011 Housing Elem ent , t he Mun icip al Cod e shall b e am end ed  t o  
allow  as a p erm it t ed  use in  t he C-M zon e, a year -round  em ergency 
shelt er  w it hout  any d iscret ionary p erm it  req uirem ent s. 
Develop m ent  st and ard s and  p erm it  p roced ures t hat  ap p ly t o  t he 
use shall b e est ab lished  t o  includ e, b ut  no t  b e lim it ed  t o , 
m axim um  num b er  o f  b ed s, o f f -st reet  p arking req uirem ent s, 
hours o f  op erat ion , lengt h  o f  st ay, secur it y, et c. 

H4.2 Casa Esp eranza. Cont inue t o  f und  an d  sup p or t  Casa Esp eranza 
Hom eless Shelt er  o r  o t her  suit ab le shelt er  f acilit ies, and  
encourage a b road  range o f  such  services t h roughout  t h e regio n  
includ ing services w it h  year  round  p rogram m ing. 

H4.3 Op erat ional and  Service Need s. Sup p or t  t he op erat ional and  
service need s (such  as ch ild  care and  job  t rain ing) o f  hom eless 
shelt er  and  service p rovid ers. Provid e f inancing w hen p ossib le. 

ATTACHMENT 4



Agenda Item No. 12 
File Code No. 610.04 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: General Plan Safety Element Update 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Adopting the 2013 Safety Element Update to the General Plan and 
Making Environmental Findings Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City’s General Plan Seismic Safety and Safety Element document has not been 
comprehensively updated since the original adoption (1979).  In 2010-2011, the City 
applied for and received Disaster Recovery Initiative (DRI) funds to prepare the Safety 
Element Update.  The funds were allocated in response to recent wildfire disaster 
declarations (Gap and Tea fires).   
 
In April 2013, a Draft Safety Element was released for public review.  In addition to 
hazard identification and avoidance, the 2013 Safety Element Update emphasizes 
community resilience and neighborhood involvement in planning for and responding to 
emergencies. 
 
The City Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussion on May 23, 2013.  
Several comment letters were received.  Comments were either incorporated into the 
September 2013 revised Safety Element or were explained and responded to in the 
Planning Commission Staff Report dated September 12, 2013 (Attachment 1).  
 
Local Coastal Program Hazards Section Update 
 
In April, 2013, a draft Hazards Section, the Local Coastal Program (LCP) equivalent of 
the Safety Element, was released for public review.  A copy of the Hazards Section was 
submitted to the Coastal Commission staff for their early review.  Coastal Staff replied 
with extensive comments that go well beyond the scope of the Safety Element as 
drafted and funded by the DRI grant.  As a result, the Hazards Section of the LCP will 
not be updated at this time. 



Council Agenda Report 
General Plan Safety Element Update 
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

However, Coastal staff and Planning Division staff have begun work on a 
comprehensive update of the City’s LCP.   This includes applying for grant funding as 
opportunities arise.  To date, two grant applications have been submitted.    
 
Citywide policies in the Safety Element will be considered for general City policy 
direction to help inform application of existing LCP policies when decisions are made for 
development citywide, including in the Coastal Zone.  However, until an update to the 
LCP is certified by the Coastal Commission, existing City LCP policies will apply as a 
basis for issuing Coastal Development Permits.   
 
Planning Commission Recommendation to Council 
 
Draft minutes from the Planning Commission meeting of September 19, 2013 are 
provided as Attachment 2.   
 
The Commission discussion resulted in two changes to the Safety Element.  On page 
45, text was added to acknowledge potential aviation hazards related to helicopter and 
aircraft activity at Cottage Hospital and potentially other locations.  On page 56, text was 
added to recognize Waterfront and Harbor Rescue Operations as important community 
resources.   
 
During the Planning Commission discussion, Commissioner Lodge questioned why the 
Sheffield Reservoir was identified as having moderate liquefaction potential (Figure 9 of 
the Safety Element).  At the meeting, Mr. Rodriguez (consultant) replied that this is 
primarily a factor of soil type and depth to groundwater issues.  After the meeting, staff 
contacted the geo-technical sub-consultant for the Safety Element Update (Steve 
Campbell of Campbell Geo).  Mr. Campbell provided some additional background.   
 
In 1925 the Sheffield Reservoir failed due to well documented liquefaction during the 
Santa Barbara Earthquake.  Since liquefaction occurred at the site in the past, the 
potential for future liquefaction is considered moderate as shown on the Potential 
Liquefaction Hazard Zones map (figure 9).   
 
A draft Planning Commission Resolution is provided as Attachment 3.   Attachment 4 is 
a copy of the public correspondence received for the Planning Commission meeting of 
September 19, 2013. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
An Addendum to the Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the 2011 General 
Plan Update (SCH 2009011031) has been prepared.  The addendum is included in the 
Safety Element Technical Background Report as Appendix C.  The addendum finds that 
the 2013 Safety Element would result in no changes to the impacts of the General Plan 
Update as identified in the Program EIR.   



Council Agenda Report 
General Plan Safety Element Update 
November 12, 2013 
Page 3 

 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The Safety Element Update furthers the City’s Sustainability goals by emphasizing 
community resilience and the importance of preparing for disasters and emergencies at 
the local level. 
 
Notes: 
 
Copies of the Proposed Final Safety Element have been forwarded to City Council 
members under separate cover. 
 
The Proposed Final Safety Element is available on the City’s website at: 
www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov/SafetyElement 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Planning Commission Staff Report (September 12, 2013) 

2. Draft Planning Commission Minutes (September 19, 2013 
meeting) 

3. Draft Planning Commission Resolution (September 19, 2013 
meeting) 

4. Public Correspondence Planning Commission Meeting 
of September 19, 2013 

 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ledbetter, Principal Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director / Assistant City 

Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/SafetyElement


ATTACHMENT 1



Planning Commission Staff Report 
2013 Safety Element Update – Recommendation to Council  
September 12, 2013 
Page 2 
 
Following City Council direction on May 22, 2012, the City entered into a contract with Rodriguez 
Consulting Inc. to prepare the Safety Element Update.  The focus of the Safety Element is hazard 
avoidance through updated hazards information and policies for new development.  In addition to 
supporting project permitting and environmental review processes for public facilities and private 
development, the hazards information will be useful for other ongoing City service operations 
including emergency preparedness, public safety response and community resiliency planning. 

 
III. DISCUSSION 
The Draft Safety Element was released for public review in April, 2013.  The public comment period 
closed on June 6, 2013.  The City Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussion on May 
23, 2013.  The minutes of the discussion meeting are provided as Exhibit C. 
 
The Planning Commission also received written comment letters from Dall & Associates (May 22, 
2013), the Environmental Defense Center and Steve Johnson.  All three were distributed to the 
Planning Commission prior to the meeting on May 23, 2013. Additionally, Planning Staff received 
input individually from HLC Commissioner Judy Orias and Planning Commissioner Sheila Lodge 
prior to the meeting.  Subsequently, the City received additional comment letters from Dall and 
Associates (June 6, 2013) and the Santa Barbara Association of Realtors (June 6, 2013).  Having not 
been previously distributed to the Planning Commission, these later letters are attached as Exhibits D 
and E respectively. 
 
Click here to see the proposed Safety Element Update (September 2013).  In response to Planning 
Commission and public comments and additional staff input, the policy section of the document (pages 
55 – 67) has been refined as described below.  The Safety Element description of coastal bluff retreat 
(pages 27 – 29) has also been revised.  The remainder of the Safety Element and Technical 
Background Report has not been changed from the April 2013 draft.  Exceptions include enlarging 
some maps, minor text changes in response to comments, and correcting typographical errors. 
 

LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM HAZARDS SECTION UPDATE 
Coastal Commission Review 
 
A draft Hazards Section, the Local Coastal Program (LCP) equivalent of the Safety Element, was 
submitted to the local Coastal Commission office on May 3, 2013 for their early review, in hopes of 
incorporating Commission staff comments into this draft of the Safety Element.   Extensive comments 
were received on June 26, 2013, which went well beyond the scope of the Safety Element as drafted.   
As a result, the Hazards section of the LCP will not be included as part of the Safety Element currently 
under review.  
 
Given that the existing LCP has not been updated since it was originally certified in 1982, Commission 
staff has strongly encouraged the City to undertake a comprehensive update of the LCP.  City staff has 
been working with the Commission staff to initiate this effort, including applying for grant funding.  
Hazards, along with land use and cultural resources, will be the first LCP sections to be updated.  The 

ATTACHMENT 1

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=34564


ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



   

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
 

September 19, 2013 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
Chair Jordan called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. 

I. ROLL CALL 
Chair Mike Jordan, Vice Chair Deborah L. Schwartz, Commissioners Bruce Bartlett, John 
P. Campanella, Sheila Lodge, June Pujo, and Addison Thompson. 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Bettie Weiss, City Planner 
Renee Brooke, Senior Planner 
Susan Reardon, Senior Planner 
Elizabeth Limón, Project Planner 
Barbara Shelton, Project Planner / Environmental Analyst 
N. Scott Vincent, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathleen Goo, Commission Secretary 

 
II. PRELIMINARY MATTERS:  

Action on the review of the following Draft Minutes and Resolutions: 

A. Draft Minutes of September 5, 2013 

Commissioners Pujo and Schwartz made several suggested changes to the Sept. 5th 
Draft Minutes and the letter to Caltrans which the Commission acknowledged. 
 
Public comment letter and emails from Commissioner Swartz, Sharon O’Brian, and 
Thorn Roberson were acknowledged. 
 
N. Scott Vincent, Assistant City Attorney, suggested approval and ratification of a 
revised Sept. 5, 2013 draft minutes be continued to the October 3, 2013. 

 
MOTION:  Schwartz/Thompson 
Continue approval and ratification of the September 5, 2013 minutes to the October 3, 2013 
hearing. 

This motion carried by the following vote:   

Ayes:  7    Noes:  0    Abstain:  0    Absent:  0 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



Planning Commission Minutes   
September 19, 2013 
Page 2 
 
B. Requests for continuances, withdrawals, postponements, or addition of ex-agenda 

items. 

There were no requests. 

C. Announcements and appeals. 

Ms. Brooke made the following announcements: 

1. The Planning Commission’s 90th Celebration will be held on October 3, 2013. 

2. The Citizen’s Planning Academy classes will be held on seven consecutive 
Tuesdays from October 8th through November 19th, 2013. 

D. Comments from members of the public pertaining to items not on this agenda. 

Chair Jordan opened the public hearing at 1:19 P.M. and, with no one wishing to 
speak, closed the hearing. 

Bettie Weiss, City Planner, clarified staff’s direction to the Commission regarding the two 
agenda items before the Commission, their scope and differences, and what is expected of 
the Commission for each item. 

IV. RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL: 

ACTUAL TIME: 3:59 P.M. 
2013 GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT - SAFETY ELEMENT UPDATE – 
RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL 
The 2013 Safety Element provides a comprehensive update to the Seismic Safety/Safety 
Element of the General Plan.  The element includes updated information and maps 
describing natural- and human-caused hazards in the City including geologic, seismic, 
fire, flooding and hazardous materials hazards.  The element describes current and future 
City actions being taken to reduce hazard-related risk and to respond to emergency 
situations through updated goals, policies and implementation actions. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing to make recommendations to City 
Council for approval. 
 
Case Planner: Elizabeth Limón, Project Planner, joined by Bettie Weiss, City Planner, 
Barbara Shelton, Environmental Analyst and Steve Rodriguez of Rodriguez Consulting, Inc. 
 
Elizabeth Limón, Project Planner, gave the Staff presentation and the need for an 
comprehensive update of the original General Plan Seismic Safety and Safety Element 
initially adopted in 1979.  Ms. Limón clarified specific elements of the new 2013 Safety 
Element goals focusing on public safety, community resilience, and hazard risk reduction.   
Initially, the Local Coastal Program (LCP) Amendment process included a draft hazards 
section.  Early informal review by Coastal staff revealed extensive policy comments.   Some 
of the comments were incorporated into the Proposed Safety Element.  However, many of 
the responses were beyond the current scope of work..  Ms. Weiss informed the 
Commission that applications have been submitted to develop a comprehensive LCP update. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes   
September 19, 2013 
Page 3 
 
Ms. Limón also reviewed previous comments received from Historic Landmarks 
Commissioner Judy Orías, Planning Commissioner Sheila Lodge, and emails and letters of 
concern from Allied Neighborhood Association via Joe Rution, Cathie McCammon, Co-
President of the La Mesa Neighborhood Assoc. (LMNA), Norbert Dall (Dall & Associates), 
and Paula Westbury. Staff reported that, in response to comments, a compilation of General 
Plan goals, policies and strategies from all elements will be prepared as a handout for the 
public. 
 
Chair Jordan opened the public hearing at 4:52 P.M, and with no one else wishing to speak, 
the public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Pujo/Schwartz Assigned Resolution No.  012-13 
Recommend to City Council that the Safety Element Update be adopted, as outlined in the 
Staff Report dated September 12, 2013, with the suggested amended comments: 

1. Adding text on Page 45 of the Proposed Safety Element regarding 
helicopter activity or aircraft activity so that this is identified as a potential 
hazard, especially with regard to Cottage Hospital and potentially other 
locations, pertaining to mixing land uses with aircraft uses.   

2. Adding text on page 56 (S6.2) to include rescue operations as part of 
Waterfront and Harbor Patrol Operations. 

 
This motion carried by the following vote:  7/0 
 
Ayes:  7    Noes:  0    Abstain:  0    Absent:  0 
 
Chair Jordan announced the ten calendar day appeal period. 



 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA PLANNING COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION NO. 012-13 

SAFETY ELEMENT 
RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL 

SEPTEMBER 19, 2013 
2013 GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT - SAFETY ELEMENT UPDATE – RECOMMENDATION TO 
CITY COUNCIL 
The 2013 Safety Element provides a comprehensive update to the Seismic Safety/Safety Element of the General 
Plan.  The element includes updated information and maps describing natural and human-caused hazards in the 
City including geologic, seismic, fire, flooding and hazardous materials.  The element describes current and 
future City actions being taken to reduce hazard-related risk and to respond to emergency situations through 
updated goals, policies and implementation actions. 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has held the required public hearing on the above 
recommendation, and the Applicant was present. 

WHEREAS, no one appeared to speak either in favor or in opposition thereto, and the following 
exhibits were presented for the record: 

1. Staff Report with Attachments, September 12, 2013 

2. Correspondence received expressing concerns with the proposed element: 

a. Joe Rution for the Allied Neighborhood Association, Santa Barbara, CA. 
b. Cathie McCammon, Co-President of the La Mesa Neighborhood Assoc., Santa 

Barbara, CA. 
c. Norbert H. Dall, Partner, Dall & Associates, Sacramento, CA. 
d. Paula Westbury, Santa Barbara, CA. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Planning Commission recommended the 2013 
Safety Element Update for adoption by the City Council with the following added comments: 

1. Adding text on Page 45 of the Proposed Safety Element regarding helicopter activity or 
aircraft activity so that this is identified as a potential hazard, especially with regard to 
Cottage Hospital and potentially other locations, pertaining to mixing land uses with 
aircraft uses.   

2. Adding text on page 56 (S6.2) to include rescue operations as part of Waterfront and 
Harbor Patrol Operations. 

This motion was passed and adopted on the 19th day of September, 2013 by the Planning Commission 
of the City of Santa Barbara, by the following vote: 

  AYES: 7    NOES: 0    ABSTAIN: 0    ABSENT: 0 
 

I hereby certify that this Resolution correctly reflects the action taken by the City of Santa Barbara 
Planning Commission at its meeting of the above date. 
 
_______________________________________________  ____________________________ 
Kathleen Goo, Alternate Planning Commission Secretary   Date 
 

ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 4















RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADOPTING THE 2013 SAFETY 
ELEMENT UPDATE TO THE GENERAL PLAN AND 
MAKING ENVIRONMENTAL FINDINGS PURSUANT 
TO THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
ACT 

 
WHEREAS, Government Code Section 65300 requires that the City of Santa Barbara 
adopt a comprehensive, long-term General Plan for the physical development of the 
City, including a Safety Element; 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Safety Element of the General Plan has not been 
comprehensively updated since the original adoption in 1979; 

 
WHEREAS, in 2010-2011, the City applied for and received Disaster Recovery 
Initiative (DRI) funds to prepare the Safety Element Update; 
 
WHEREAS, on July 7, 2011, the City Planning Commission reviewed the scope of 
work for the Safety Element Update; 

 
WHEREAS, on May 22, 2012, the City Council directed staff to enter into a contract 
with Rodriguez Consulting Inc., to assist the City in preparing the Safety Element 
Update; 

 
WHEREAS, on May 6, 2013, a draft Safety Element was released for a 30-day public 
review period ending June 6, 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, on May 23, 2013, the City Planning Commission held a duly noticed 
public hearing on the draft Safety Element, received public comment and commented 
on the draft element;  
 
WHEREAS, on September 12, 2013, a revised Safety Element was released for public 
review;  
 
WHEREAS, on September 19, 2013, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed 
public hearing to review responses to comments, the revised Safety Element and 
errata sheet, made two additions to the Errata Sheet, and unanimously recommended 
that City Council adopt the 2013 Safety Element Update;  
 
WHEREAS; on November 12, 2013, the Council held a duly noticed public hearing to 
adopt the General Plan 2013 Safety Element Update including errata sheet 
corrections; 

 
WHEREAS, a Final Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was certified for the 
2011 General Plan Update, and EIR Addenda were prepared and considered by City 

 



Council as part of adoption of the final 2011 General Plan (12-1-11), Climate Action 
Plan (9-18-12), and Historic Resources Element (10-2-12);  

 
WHEREAS, an EIR Addendum dated April 30, 2013 for the 2013 Safety Element 
Update has been prepared and documents that the update would result in no 
substantial changes in environmental impacts previously identified in the Program EIR 
for the 2011 General Plan Update; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Planner is the custodian of the records of proceedings for the 
2011 General Plan Update, Final Program EIR for the General Plan Update and EIR 
Addenda, and the 2013 General Plan Safety Element Update. The documents and 
other materials which constitute the records of proceedings for these City actions are 
located at the City of Santa Barbara Community Development Department, Planning 
Division, 630 Garden Street, Santa Barbara, California. Copies of these documents 
are available for public review during normal business hours upon request at the City 
Planning Division office. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 

 
I. Adoption of 2013 Safety Element Update and Findings 
 

The City Council hereby adopts the 2013 General Plan Safety Element Update 
(Exhibit A) making the following findings: 

 
A. Charter Finding 

The 2013 General Plan Map amendments meet the intent of Charter Section 
1507, "living within our resource limits". The adoption of the 2013 Safety 
Element Update will not cause public services or resource capacities to be 
exceeded.  

 
B. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Findings: 

 
1. CEQA Findings for City Council Consideration of Certified Final General 

Plan Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and EIR Addendum 
pursuant to CCR §§15090 and 15162. 

 The FEIR Addendum dated April 30, 2013 for the 2013 General Plan Safety 
Element Update together with the certified FEIR for the 2011 General Plan, 
were presented to the City Council, and the City Council has reviewed and 
considered the information contained therein prior to adopting the Safety 
Element Update. This CEQA documentation for the Safety Element Update 
constitutes adequate environmental review under CEQA and reflects the 
Lead Agency’s independent judgment and analysis. 

 



2. CEQA Findings for Use of Certified Final General Plan Program 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and EIR Addendum, pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines §§ 15162, and 15164. 
The 2013 General Plan Safety Element Update is consistent with and 
implements the 2011 General Plan policies, and is within the comprehensive 
scope of analysis of the Program EIR and Addenda for the 2011 General Plan 
update and 2012 Climate Plan. 
 
The EIR Addendum dated April 30, 2013 documents that the 2013 Safety 
Element Update would not result in new environmental issues, 
circumstances, or information, additional significant environmental impacts 
beyond those identified in the General Plan Program EIR, a substantial 
increase in the severity of impacts identified in the EIR, or new mitigation 
measures. None of the conditions described in CEQA Guidelines Section 
15162 calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR is applicable.  
 

3. Council Resolutions 11-079 and 12-065 Findings per PRC Section 21081 
and CCR 15091 Apply to this Action. 
Findings regarding Class I significant impacts, Class 2 mitigated impacts, 
overriding considerations, and infeasibility of some mitigation measures and 
alternatives all remain applicable for adoption of the 2013 General Plan 
Safety Element Update and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
4. Findings for the Fish & Game Code pursuant to PRC Section 21089 (b) 

and Fish & Game Code Sections 711.4 and 753.5. 
The General Plan Program EIR evaluated the potential for the 2011 General 
Plan to result in adverse impacts on wildlife resources. For this purpose, 
wildlife is defined as “all wild animals, birds, plants, fish, amphibians, and 
related ecological communities, including habitat upon which the wildlife 
depends for its continued viability.” The General Plan has the potential to 
result in adverse but not significant effects on upland, creek/riparian, and 
coastal habitats and associated species. Mitigation measures have been 
incorporated into the General Plan such that potential impacts will be less 
than significant. 
 
As documented in the EIR Addendum dated April 30, 2013, the 2013 General 
Plan Safety Element Update will implement the 2011 General Plan policies 
and would not result in additional environmental effects beyond those 
identified in the EIR.. Pursuant to the Fish and Game Code Section 753.5 (e) 
(3), only one fee is required when an existing certified EIR is used for multiple 
project approvals that would result in no additional effect to fish and wildlife. 
Because the City paid the fee for the 2011 General Plan, no fee is required 
with the current implementing amendment for adoption of the Safety Element 
Update. 

 
II. This Resolution shall become effective upon Council adoption. 



Agenda Item No. 13 
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Interviews For City Advisory Groups 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and 
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 19, 2013. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Interviews of applicants for various positions on City Advisory Groups are to be held on 
November 12, 2013, at an estimated time of 4:00 p.m.  Applicants will also have the option 
to be interviewed on November 19, 2013, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
For the current vacancies, 109 applications were received.  A list of eligible applicants and 
pertinent information about the City Advisory Groups is attached to this report. 
 
Applicants have been notified that to be considered for appointment they must be 
interviewed.  Applicants have been requested to prepare a 2-3 minute verbal presentation, 
in response to a set of questions specific to the group for which they are applying.  
Applicants applying to more than one advisory group may have up to 5 minutes for their 
presentation. 
 
Applicants for the Santa Barbara Youth Council have been notified that they must also 
appear for an interview before the Youth Council.  They had the option to appear on 
Monday, October 21, 2013, at 4:30 p.m. or Monday, November 4, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Appointments are scheduled to take place on December 10, 2013. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Interviews For City Advisory Groups 
November 12, 2013 
Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENT: List of Applicants 
 
PREPARED BY: Deborah L. Applegate, Deputy City Clerk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo A. López, Assistant City Administrator/Administrative 

Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 

1 
 

ACCESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire December 31, 2014 (Architectural/Engineering/Building Community) 
                                December 31, 2016 (Public at Large) 
• Residents of the City or a full-time employee of an entity doing business within the City who demonstrates an 

interest, experience, and commitment to issues pertaining to disability and access.  
 One representative from the Architectural/Engineering/Building Community. 
 Three representatives from the Public at Large. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Architectural/ 
Engineering/Building 
Community (1) 
 

None    

Public at Large (3) Mary Ellen Bangs    

 Karen L. Johnson 12/16/2008, 12/07/2010 
(5 years) 

  

 Adelaida Ortega 12/16/2008, 12/07/2010 
(5 years) 

  

 Barbara Silver    

 



2 

AIRPORT COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire December 31, 2017. 
• Appointee must be a qualified elector of the City and one City or County resident. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of the 
City (1 or 2) 

Laura McIver    

Mark A. Rincon-Ibarra  1. Airport Commission 
2. Harbor Commission 
3. Civil Service 

Commission 

 

James R. Wilson    

County (0 or 1) Paul Bowen    

Jeff Clark    

Carl L. Hopkins    

 
 

 



3 

 
 

ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires December 31, 2017. 
• Qualified Elector of the City or the County of Santa Barbara and have professional experience in related fields. 

 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City or County (1) 

Courtney Jane Miller 
(Licensed Landscape 
Architect) 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire December 31, 2017. 
• Two members must be residents and qualified electors of the City.  Two members shall reside in the South Coast 

area of Santa Barbara County, bounded by the Gaviota tunnel on the north and the Santa Barbara County line on 
the south. 

• Members should be persons with acknowledged accomplishments in the arts and persons who demonstrate an 
interest in and commitment to cultural and arts activities.   

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors of 
the City (2) 

Robert F. Adams 12/07/2010 
(3 years) 

  

Tom Brooks Burgher 
II 

   

Jim Laponis  1. Arts Advisory Committee 
2. Fire & Police Commission 

 

Sally Sheridan    

Marylove Thralls    

Valerie Velazquez    

Margie Yahyavi    

South Coast Area (2) Katrina Carl    

Nina L. Dunbar    

Elizabeth Owen    



5 

 
BUILDING AND FIRE CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

• Two vacancies. 
• Open terms. 
• Residents of the City or adjoining unincorporated areas of Santa Barbara County. 
• Appointees shall demonstrate knowledge and expertise in specialty areas governed by the construction and fire 

codes of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
unincorporated area 
of Santa Barbara 
County (2) 
 

None    

 



6 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
 

 

• Two vacancies. 
• One term expires December 31, 2017. 
     One term expires December 31, 2016. 
• Must be a qualified elector of the City. 
• May not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government, and for one year after ceasing to be a 

member, shall not be eligible for any salaried office or employment with the City. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors of 
the City (2) 

Richard C. Banks    

Kathryn D. McKee 12/13/2005, 12/15/2009 
(8 years) 

*Applying for third term 

  

Bernard Melekian  1.  Fire & Police Commission 
2. Civil Service Commission 

 

Desmond O’Neill    

Mark A. Rincon-Ibarra  1.  Airport Commission 
2.  Harbor Commission 
3.  Civil Service Commission 

 

 
 



7 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Two terms expires December 31, 2017 (Housing Interests, Business, Community/Economic Development, and  
             African American Community). 
          One term expires December 31, 2016 (Housing Authority) 
• Must be residents or employees of the designated organizations, but need not be qualified electors of the City, 

and must represent one of the specified categories or organizations.  One representative from each: 
 Housing Authority of 

the City of Santa 
Barbara 

 Business 
Community/Economic 
Development 

  African American Community  
 Housing Interests 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Housing Authority of 
the City of Santa 
Barbara (1) 

Alice Villarreal Redit    

Business 
Community/Economic 
Development (1) 

Laura Knight 7/11/2006, 12/15/2009 
(7 years, 5 months) 

  

Katherine Zeiss    

African American 
Community (1) 

None    

Housing Interests (1) Stephen Faulstich 6/26/2011  
(1 year, 6 months) 

  



8 

COMMUNITY EVENTS & FESTIVALS COMMITTEE 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires December 31, 2015. 
• Member must be a representative of the Business/Lodging/Retail Industry. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Business/Lodging/ 
Retail Industry (1) 

Katrina Carl    

Barbara Kaplan  1. Community Events & Festivals 
2. Neighborhood Advisory Group 
3. Rental Housing Mediation 

 

Christina Markos    

Roman Orestano    

 



9 

CREEKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires December 31, 2015. 
• Member must be a resident of the City.  Member shall have some experience in ocean use, business, 

environmental issues and/or provide community-at-large representation. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of the 
City (1) James Hawkins    

 
 
 



10 

DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• One term expires December 31, 2016.  One term expires December 31, 2017. 
• Appointees shall demonstrate an interest and knowledge of downtown parking issues. 
• Two members must be residents of the City and one member may be a resident of the City or County. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors of 
the City (2 or 3) Dr. Michael Cooper    

William E. Pinner III 
(Trey) 

6/28/2011 
(2 years, 6 months) 

  

Sean Pratt    

Kathryn A. Schwab    

Ethan Shenkman    

Resident of the County 
(0 or 1) 

    

 
 
 
 



11 

 
FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 

 

• Two vacancies. 
• One term expires December 31, 2017.  One term expires December 31, 2014. 
• Two qualified electors of the City. 
 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. 
Dates 
(Years 

Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors of 
the City (2) 

Matthew Hunter 
Kramer 

  
 

Jim Laponis  1.  Arts Advisory Committee 
2. Fire & Police Commission 

 

Bernard Melekian  1. Fire & Police Commission 
2.  Civil Service Commission 

*Retired Chief of Police - Pasadena 

Judith Parris Stevens   
 

Eugene F. Zannon 
(Gene) 

  
 

 



12 

FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• One term expires December 31, 2017 (Active/Retired Police Officer).  One term expired December 31, 2016 

(Qualified Elector). 
• One active retired police officer who need not be a resident of the City. 
• One Qualified Elector of the City who is not an active firefighter or police officer for the City of Santa Barbara. 
 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Active/Retired Police 
Officer (1) 

None   
 

Qualified Electors (1) None   . 

 



13 

HARBOR COMMISSION 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Three terms expire December 31, 2017. 
• Two or Three Qualified Electors of the City. 
• One member of the Harbor Commission who need not be a Qualified Elector of the City so long as he or she is, at 

time of appointment, a Qualified Elector of Santa Barbara County and remains so qualified while a Commissioner. 
 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City (2 or 3) 

Cory Bantilan 6/29/2010 
(3 years, 6 months) 

 
 

Dennis M. Power   
 

Thomas E. Isaacson   
 

Mark A. Rincon-Ibarra  1.  Airport Commission 
2. Harbor Commission 
3. Civil Service Commission 

 

Virginia Rubsam   
 

Qualified Elector of 
the County (0 or 1) 

Jim Sloan 12/15/2009 
(4 years) 

 . 

 
 



14 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Two terms expire December 31, 2017. 
• One Qualified Elector of the City – Public at Large. 
• One Qualified Elector of the City and a Licensed Landscape Architect. 
• Appointees must demonstrate knowledge of the history and architecture of the City. 

 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector 
of the City – 
Public at Large (1) 
 

William Mahan    

Qualified Elector 
of the City – 
Landscape 
Architect (1) 

Philip Suding 12/15/2009 
(4 years) 

(Prior Service 2001-2006) 

  

 



15 

HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires February 15, 2016. 
• Member must be a Qualified Elector of the City, a tenant who is receiving housing assistance from the City 

Housing Authority and must be 62 years of age or older.   
• Member should have some interest and background in housing development, management or other comparable 

experience. 
 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector 
of the City / Senior 
Tenant (1) 
 

Victor Suhr 12/13/2011 
(2 years) 

  

 

 



16 

LIBRARY BOARD 
 

 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires December 31, 2017. 
• Qualified Electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (1) Milton Hess    

 



17 

LIVING WAGE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• One term expires June 30, 2015 (Owner/Manager of a Service Contractor).  Two terms expire June 30, 2016 

(Nominee of the Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce or Santa Barbara Downtown Organization and Employee 
of Local Non-Profit Entity). One term expires June 30, 2017 (Nominee of a Local Living Wage Advocacy 
Organization). 

• One representative from each: 
 Employee of a local Santa Barbara area nonprofit entity; 
 Nominee of a Local Living Wage Advocacy Organization; 

 

 Owner/Manager of a service contractor subject to the City’s Living Wage Ordinance; and 
 Nominee of the Santa Barbara Downtown Organization or Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce  

 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Employee of Nonprofit Entity (1) Lety Garcia    

Nominee of a Local Living Wage 
Advocacy Organization (1) 

None    

Owner/Manager of a service 
contractor subject to the City’s 
Living Wage Ordinance (1) 

None    

Nominee of the Santa Barbara 
Downtown Organization or Santa 
Barbara Chamber of Commerce 
Nominee (1) 

Kenneth Oplinger    



18 

MEASURE P COMMITTEE 
 

• Seven vacancies. 
• Two terms expire December 31, 2017 (Medical Professional and Medical Marijuana Patient)  Two terms expire 

December 31, 2016 (Criminal Defense Attorney and Civil Liberties Advocate).  One term expires December 31, 
2015 (Resident of the City).  Two terms expire December 31, 2014 (Counselor, Resident of the City). 

• Two residents of the City; and one representative from each: 
 Civil Liberties Advocate  Criminal Defense Attorney 
 Drug abuse, treatment & prevention counselor  Medical Professional 

 Medical Marijuana Patient 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Residents of the City (2) Robert Mercado  1. Neighborhood Advisory 
2. Measure P 

 

Civil Liberties Advocate (1) Stephen Pratt    

Criminal Defense Attorney (1) Patric H. R. Weddle    

Drug abuse, treatment & 
prevention counselor (1) 

None    

Medical Professional (1) None    

Medical Marijuana Patient (1) Brandon Morse    



19 

MOSQUITO AND VECTOR MANAGEMENT DISTRICT BOARD 
 

 

• One vacancy.   
• Term expires January 7, 2015. 
• Registered voter of the City of Santa Barbara. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Registered Voter of the 
City of Santa Barbara 
(1) 

Gail-Jean (GJ) Padilla    

 
 



20 

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL 

• Five vacancies. 
• Three terms expire December 31, 2017 (Public at Large, Neighborhood Representatives).  One term expires 

December 31, 2015 (Public at Large).  One term expires December 31, 2016 (Public at Large). 
• Three residents of the City who represent the Public at Large. 
• Two neighborhood representatives from any of the following neighborhoods: 

 West Downtown  Eastside  Lower Eastside 
 Laguna  Westside  Lower Westside 

• Residents of the City need not be qualified electors of the City. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government 
Note:  Of the thirteen members, the City Council may, but is not required to, appoint up to three (3) youth that are the  

ages of 16 or 17.  Priority may be given to youth from the six specified neighborhoods. 

 

 
NOTE: Applicants under the Neighborhood Representative category are also eligible for appointment to the 

Public at Large category. 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd 

 
Notes 

Neighborhood 
Representative (2) 

Public at Large (3) 

Sebastian Aldana Jr. 3/01/2011 
(2 years) 

 Eastside 

Abbey Fragosa   Lower Eastside 

Christy Haynes   Eastside 

 

(Cont’d) 



21 

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd 

 
Notes 

Neighborhood 
Representative (2) 
Public at Large (3) 

Barbara Kaplan  1.  Community Events & Festivals 
2.  Rental Housing Mediation 
3.  Neighborhood Advisory 

Eastside 

Susan Lafond   Westside 

Gary Lytle   Lower Westside 

Beth McDonald   Eastside 

Robert Mercado  1.  Neighborhood Advisory 
2.  Measure P 

Downtown 

Ana D. Soto  (Public at Large) 
3/01/2011 
(2 years) 

  

Youth Applicants Alejandro Martinez   Student, Alta Vista 
(Blank Application 
Submitted) 

Roberto Fuentes   Student, La Cuesta 

 



22 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
 

• Five vacancies.   
• Three terms expire December 31, 2017.  One term expires December 31, 2016.  One term expires December 31, 

2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Electors of the 
City (5) 

Margery Baragona  1.  Rental Housing Mediation 
2.  Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

Carolyn Brown    

Chris Casebeer 12/15/2009 
(4 years) 

  

Nichol Clark    

Bob Cunningham    

Nicolas Ferrara 6/29/2010 
(3 years) 

  

Jim Heaton    

Michael J. Nelson    

David Victor Vasquez    

Lesley Wiscomb 12/15/2009 
(4 years) 

  

Olivia Uribe    
 



23 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 

• Two vacancies.   
• Two terms expire December 31, 2017. 
• Qualified Electors of the City 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors of the 
City (2) 
 

Michael Jordan 12/15/2009 
(4 years) 

  

Deborah L. Schwartz 12/15/2009 
(4 years) 

  

Amy Beth Katz    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24 

RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION TASK FORCE 
 

• Five vacancies. 
• Three terms expire December 31, 2017.  One term expires December 31, 2016.  One term expires December 31, 

2014. 
• Residents of the City or the County of Santa Barbara: 

 One homeowner (City) 
 One tenant (City) 

 One landlord (City) 
 Two tenants (City or County) 

 

Note:  Non-resident members must be owners of residential rental property within the City limits or 
affiliated with organizations concerned with landlord-tenant issues within the City limits. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Homeowner -City (1) Margery Baragona  1.  Rental Housing 
Mediation 

2. Parks & Recreation 

 

 Jeana L. Dressel   *Both Homeowner/Landlord 

 Daniel R. Herlinger 6/28/2005, 12/13/2005 
12/15/2009 

(8 years, 6 months) 
*Applying for third term 

  

Landlord  - City (1) Jeana L. Dressel   *Both Homeowner/Landlord 

Tenant – City (1) Lynn E. Goebel  6/30/2009 
12/15/2009 

(4 years, 9 months) 

  

Tenants – City or 
County (2) 

    



25 

SANTA BARBARA YOUTH COUNCIL 
 

• Six vacancies.  Terms expire 6/30/2014.   Members must be between the ages of 13 – 19 years 
• Two members from local alternative, community, or continuation high school. 
• One member from Santa Barbara High School. 
• One member from Dos Pueblos High School. 
• Two members from local private high school or independent studies and be a resident of the City.  
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years 

Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Local Alternative, 
Community, or 
Continuation High 
School (2) 

Cynthia Barahona  La Cuesta (City)    
Jennifer Castro  La Cuesta (City)    
Chris Dominguez  La Cuesta (City)    
Maria Liliana Flores  La Cuesta (City)    
Caedon (Don) Hirrel  La Cuesta (County)    
Eric Parker  La Cuesta (City)    
Isaae Mendibles  La Cuesta (City)    

Local Private High 
School or Ind Studies 
(2) 

Michael Reyes  (County)    
Emily Velez    

Santa Barbara High 
School (1) 

Estevan Arroyo    
Madison C. Carlentine  (City)    
Rachaell Diaz (City)    

Dos Pueblos High 
School (1) 

Shagun Sharma (County)    



26 

 



Agenda Item No. 14 

File Code No. 160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference with Legal Counsel – Pending Litigation 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
 
The pending litigation is Donald Sipple, and New Cingular Wireless PSC LLC, et al., v. 
The City of Alameda, California, et al., LASC Case No. BC432270 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Stephen P. Wiley, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No. 15 
File Code No.  440.05 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 12, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager, regarding 
negotiations with the General Bargaining Unit, Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, 
Hourly Bargaining Unit, Police Management Association, and regarding salaries and 
fringe benefits for certain unrepresented management and confidential employees. 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 45 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo López, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 


	1.DOC (7 pages)
	2.DOC (1 page)
	3.DOC (1 page)
	4.DOC (4 pages)
	5.DOC (4 pages)
	6.PDF (1 page)
	7.PDF (4 pages)
	8.PDF (1 page)
	9.DOC (1 page)
	10.DOC (1 page)
	11.DOC (8 pages)
	12.DOC (1 page)
	13.DOCX (10 pages)
	14.DOC (2 pages)
	15.DOC (2 pages)
	16.DOC (2 pages)
	17.PDF (1 page)
	18.PDF (2 pages)
	19.DOC (1 page)
	20.PDF (6 pages)
	21.DOC (1 page)
	22.DOC (2 pages)
	23.DOC (1 page)
	24.DOC (2 pages)
	25.PDF (20 pages)
	26.DOCX (8 pages)
	27.PDF (3 pages)
	28.DOC (6 pages)
	29.PDF (14 pages)
	30.PDF (1 page)
	31.PDF (5 pages)
	32.PDF (1 page)
	33.DOC (3 pages)
	34.PDF (55 pages)
	35.PDF (3 pages)
	36.PDF (1 page)
	37.PDF (7 pages)
	38.DOC (3 pages)
	39.DOC (2 pages)
	40.DOC (26 pages)
	41.DOC (1 page)
	42.DOC (1 page)



